NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING

MGSD TUESDAY, April 2", 2024, 6:00 P.M.,
BOARD ROOM, MGSD TREATMENT PLANT,

1790 HWY. 395, MINDEN NV

AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. Public Comment -- Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action

e Public Comment is limited to three minutes per speaker, unless the Board Chairman allows
additional time.

e Per NRS 241.020, no action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which
action will be taken.

3. District Manager’s Report - For Possible Action
e Discussion includes monthly report of activities, personnel matters, and progress of various
projects.
¢ Action Items may include matters needing immediate attention or resolution related to plant
repairs, sewer line repairs, and any other matter of impact to public health and safety.

4. Chairman’s Comment - Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action
¢ Discussion includes comments and status of projects not covered under an agenda item
NOTE: No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself
has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken.

5. Claims Review and Approval — For Possible Action
Review and Approval of Bills Paid and Claims Received for February 2024

6. Minutes Approval - For Possible Action
Approval of Minutes from the March 5" 2024 Regular Board Meeting

7. District Manager Annual Review - For Possible Action
Annual performance review for District Manager Peter Baratti as outlined in the terms of the
Employment Contract between Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District and Peter V. Baratti.
Topics may also include:
o Salary Review and Increase

1790 Hwy. 395 ¢ Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 » 775-782-4915 fax



MGSD Regular Board Meeting
April 2™, 2024, 6:00 pm

Page 2

8. Pine View Estates Contract of Service - For Possible Action
Approval of Second Amendment to Contract for Providing Sewer Service between Pine View
Estates Homeowners Association and Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District, incorporating
amendments requested by the Pine View Estates Homeowners Association.

9. Attorney-Client Conference — For Possible Action
Status Report of Ongoing Matters and Requests from MGSD Staff and Board of Trustees
Note: The Board of Trustees reserves the right to interrupt the open meeting during this time and adjourn
to a closed session for the purpose of having an attorney-client discussion regarding potential or existing

litigation, pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2). No action will be taken on an item discussed during a closed
session.

10. Engineer’s Report — For Possible Action
e Action Items may include matters needing immediate attention or resolution related to line
rehabilitation, line cleaning, and progress of various projects.

11. Controller’s Report — For Possible Action

e Action [tems may include financial items that arose after agenda posting and requiring
immediate action or response by the Board.

12. Administrative Report by Staff — For Possible Action

e Action ltems may include correspondence requiring immediate action or response by the
Board.

13. Board Comment — Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action
» Discussion may include comments and status of projects not covered under a prior agenda
item (No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter

itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be
taken.)

14. Public Comment -- Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action
¢ Public Comment is limited to three minutes per speaker, unless the Board Chairman allows
additional time.
¢ Per NRS 241.020, no action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item vpon which
action will be taken.)

MGSD

- 1790 Hwy. 395 » Minden, Nevada 89423 ¢ 775-782-3546  775-782-4915 fax



MGSD Regular Board Meeting
April 2™, 2024, 6:00 pm

Page 3

15. ADJOURNMENT

The MGSD Board reserves the right (o hear any agenda item out of order, to combine two or more agenda items
for consideration, and remove an item from the agenda or delay a discussion relating to any item on the agenda.
Copies of supporting material are available online at www.mgsdistrict.org or can be requested from the
Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District Office located at 1790 Hwy. 395, Minden, NV 89423, by calling Haley
Mosegard or Jessica Kneefel at (775) 782-3546, or by email at mgsdstaffiaigmail.com or at
halev(@mgsdistrict.org or al jessicaf@mgsdistrict.org,

Any agenda item represented by an attorney must give written notice to the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation
District at least fifteen days prior to the meeting.

All persons attending the meeting are required to sign the guest register. All meetings are recorded pursuant to
NRS 241.035.

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate
physically handicapped persons desiring to attend the meeting. Please call the MGSD office at (775) 782-3546
in advance of the meeting, so that arrangements may be conveniently made.

This meeting notice is posted at the following locations: the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District; Douglas
County Historic Courthouse Building; Gardnerville Post Office; Minden Post Office; and at
https://notice.nv.gov

PLEASE DO NOT REMOVE UNTIL: 4/3/24

MGSD

v 1790 Hwy. 395 « Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546  775-782-4915 fax



%0989 %OV'LE LL'SL0'792°€$ 00°L9L'SSL'Y$ 62 L60'E6Y'LS Tv101

%000 %00°00L  LE0$ 00°£9L°LL$ €9°991°'LLS awesINquIsY YdYY
%000 %000 (S6°0Et'LLS) GE0EV'LLS tuswidinb3g sendwoD/eol0
%000 %00°0 (00°089'92%) 00°089'92% ssejoey Jedey Aousblow3 Joyealg
%16°G6 %60°Y GT'€L9'65ES 00°000'GLES GL'9Ze'S1$ soejdey/jonsy L# WD eisid
%0000l %000 00°000°0¥2$ 00°000'0¥Z$ 00°0$ Jledsyoadsu| ej@i0uo) | J9)sebiQ
%¥8 9 %91 GE L¥'208'LL$ 00°000'0Z1L$ 65°/61TV$ qeyay 31910U0D Z B | J8NLIelD
%EE'BG %LY" LY 6G°ZEE'8ZLS 00°000'02Z$ L¥'£99°L6$ wawooe|day Je|iog
%0000 %0070 00°000°'cZ$ 00°000'€2$ 00'0$ Xoni| esswed
%6899 %LLEE pO'ES6'VLY'ZS  00°000°00L°€$  96'910'STT'LS$ qeyay WaisAg uofde|ed
%000 %00°0 (00'509'€$) 00°S09°€$ uoHIppY ssald )98

S3ISN3IdX3 TVLIdVD
¥Z0Z [e9S1d 20T [B9Sld  @JUBLIEeA ¥20Z ¥Z0Z |eostd
% 1ebpng 9 juadg ¢ 196png 186png |lenpy
Bumewsy  19bpng Buueiwsy alLA

4S5

20z ‘6¢ Atenuge ‘Aepsiny | Buipu3 syiuop WBi3 ay) Jog
196png |enuuy snsiaa sasuadx]

12141S1d NOILVYLINYS ITNAHINAHVYO-NIANIW



%BL'9E  %e8'E9 2S€L9°LZL$ 00'8SY'LLOZS 8Y'¥BL'EBT LS TI0UAVd TVLOL

%09°LE %0¥°29 LE'GPR'06Z$  006EV'ELLS 69°€65°C8Y$ siyeuag askojdw g sexe |loihed
%8c a¢t %L’ ¥9 12'828'9cr$  00'6LO'BEC' LS 6L°06L°108% saleleg
TI0YAVYd
¥20Z |180SId $Z0Z |BOSI4  dIUBLIEA veoT ¥2Z0¢ |eosid
% 190png 9% Juadg $ 196png 196png Jlenloy
Buiuiewsy  1@9bpng Buluelwey alA

¥20Z ‘6¢ Aenige4 ‘Aepsiny | Buipuz syuop b3 sy) Jo-
1obpng |enuuy snsiaa sasuadx3

10141813 NOILVLINYS ITIAHINGHYO-NIANIW



%62CE %LLL9 Zy'891'vELS 00°052'S2.$ 85°L8O'L6VS SISNIdX3 d 8 O V10151

(%6LLL)  %6L°LLL  (ZV6LL'LS) 00°000°0L$ ZreLLLLS uoneonpy
%ZLGE %8279 ¥8'62'9% 00°000°81$ 9L'0LS'LLS [eAowsay abpnis €1
(%68'68)  %686EL (r0'c65'CH) 00°005°9$ #0°€60'6$ asuadx3 We|d 1Yo Z1
%0000l %000 00°000°C$ 00°000'G$ wawaieqy opnbsop Lt
%60°E %16°95 LL'OL8'LELS  00°000'0ZES 62'€TL'Z81$ doueuuIe B slledsy 0|
%05°92 %0G°€L 80'698°'kS$  00°0SL'S6L$ Z6'088'cY1$ sanmn 6
%S6°S %502 29'1TL'YZ$  00°000'GSL$ 8€'8LZ'0EL$ (steoiwsy) Buisseoold) senddng ueld g
%68°6L %LL0Z £9'€86'LL$  00°000'GL$ LE910'ES Aiojes /£

SISN3IdX3 LNV1d 9

¥20C [e0S14d 20T |B0Sld  dduellep vZoz 202 jedsiq
%1906png 9 uadg $ 19bpng 18bpng |lenpy
Buuewsy  1ebpng fBuiueiay alA

e Kot

adsdOn

¥z0z ‘6z Aeniged ‘Aepsiny | Buipu3 suyuol wb13 ay) 104
196png |enuuy snsiaa sasuadxg

10141813 NOILVLINYS ITNAHINAHVO-NIANIA



%0E9 %OLES S96¥9'0L$ 00000'€2$ SE0SETLS S3ISNIdX3 NOILOITTI0D TVLIOL LE

(%L9Vv9)  %L9t9L  (£L9°9¥9%) 00°000'L$ LYOVI'LS asuadx3y weisAg uond9|I0D JBYIo 0Z
%8| %81 °G8 89'629°L$ 00°000°LI$ Z€'0LE'6S (sjen4) asuadx3 oy g yoniL 61
%Y9°L8 %9E"ZL 98'vEL 9% 00°000'L$ 71°698% soueuaue R Jledey / AL /Buiues|o - wasAg uonoLjoD 8t
%62'88 %LLLL 8/°1ES'ES 00°000't$ 2T89r$ sal|ddng - weisAg uondaloD /1

S3ISNIdX3 NOILD3TI0D 91

20T 1B2Sld +Z0T [e0SI4  dJUBHEA vzoc 202 |eostd
o, 196png 9, wadg ¢ 19bpng 18bpng |enay
Buiviewsy  18bpng Buueiwey aQlA
CdSON
$20¢ ‘6¢ Aeniged ‘Aepsuny ) Bulpu3 syiuo b3 sy 104
196png |enuuy snsiaa sasuadx3

1O141S1d NOILVLINYS FTTAYINAHVO-NIANIN



%LEL9 %69'8E L6YI6°LLE 00°00£'62% 60°SEE'LLS

%00°001 %000 00°000'c$ 00°000°c$

%00°001 %000 00°005% 00°00S$

%C0°001 %00°0 00°000'G$ 00°000'G$

%00°001 %000 00'008°}$ 00008'L$

%0L°CC %0E"LL 0ZVvCL'CS 00'000°Z1$ 08'6L2'6%

%85°0L %Z 62 LLOVE'YS 00°000°L$ 62°650°C$

¥20¢ [edsld $202 |eosid Iouelep | {4 A 202 |edsty
% 19bpng 9 Juadg $ 18bpng 1ebpng [enpy
Buiuiewsay  10b6png Buiueiuayy alA

¥Z0z ‘6z Aenigad ‘Aepsiny Buipu3 sypuol WbI3 sys 104
196png |enuuy snsIaA sasuadxy

10141S1d NOILYLINVS FTTIAYINGEHVO-NIANIN

S3ISN3dX3 8V11V10l 6¢
Bunsa] weunesneld g2
sasuadx3 ge 1BYl0 L2

asueusluey B snedoy qen 9z

Bunuwied qeq 6z
Bunse) geq vg
salddns qe ¢z

S3ISN3dX3 avi¢e

dsOn



%8EI %CIES L9LEP'9ZS 00°000°LS% 6£°295'0¢€% SISNIAX3I LNINTI33/410AHIY TVIOL €€

%8 v %L 'GS 9¢€'/65'8L$ 00°000°Z¥% ¥9°20p'€T$ saninn - Juswabeuep wany3 z¢

%LC ¢S %el'Ly SZTOV8'LS 00°000°GL$ SL'6SL'LS soueusjulely g sieday - juswabeuely wany3 |g

SISNIdX3 LNINT443/4I0AYISTY 0€

¥20Z [89S1d $20T 1e9Sld  aduelep ¥z0z ¥20z 1e9sld
9% 18bpng 9 uads $ 19bpng 196png [lemoy
Buliewsy  1abpng Buiueiway aLA
e
20z ‘6z Aenigad ‘Aepsiny Buipu3 syiuop 4613 sy) 1o
196png jenuuy snsiaA sasuadx3

12141S10 NOILVLINVS ITIAYINAEVO-NIANIN



(%L£€2)  %LeeTt  (96'698°LS) 00°000'8$ 96'698'6$
%1922 %BELL  99'EOE'LL$S  00°000'0S$ ¥£'969'8¢$
%0€"8E %OL'LS  98'ti6L$ 00°000'S$ 1°G80'€$
%LLBT %ETO0L  TTLLB'TS 00°000°04$ 8/°220'L$

(%65'6L)  %656LL (9L°L€6'CH) 00°000'5L$ 9L°LE6'LLS

(%LEOV)  %LEOVL  (86°EVR'VS) 00°000°Z1$ 86'EV8'9L$

(%L0°0S)  %LO0SL  (90°20S'L$) 00°000'€$ 90°205'v$
%LEBZ %BESOL  EYEVE'TH 00°000°8$ L5'059°S$
%L0€9 %66°9€ 05025'2$ 00°000°¥$ 05'6L1'L$
%EL 9L %LTEB G8'9GL'L$ 00°00G'0L$ GL'EPL'8$
¥20z [EISI] $ZOZ [EDS1]  OOUEBHEA ¥202Z ¥20Z 22513

9% bpng 9 uadg ¢ 19bpng 19bpng |enjoy
Buiuieway  196png Buueiway alA

wei 18 B |PABI] t¥

S92IMIBG SIBMYOS £F
uonedgnd g Buisnieapy zy
abeisod |y

1w » suoydsie | oy
sebleyn yueg ¢

saliddng Buiig uswsalels g€
seliddng usyoixp Buluesiy (¢
asuadx3 uoneonp3/Buiuiel] 9¢

asuadx3 » sanddng 9o 6¢

SISNIdX3 JALLVALSININGY R TVHINID vE

asOn

202 ‘6¢ Aenige4 ‘Aepsiny] Buipuz sypuol bIg ays Jo4
18bpng [enuuy snsiaa sasuadx3y

10141510 NOILVLINYS ITIAHINAHVO-NIANIN



%66°LZ %LOZL LZEEL'S8S O0'€EBL'VOES E£L6V0°6LTS
%CL 6C %82 0L PS LSY'YS 00°000°GL$ o' ZPS0LS
%G1 05 %SG 6 95'$S0'9% 00°000CH$ TGRS
%051 %0G°8L £1°098% 00°000'v$ LB'BEL'ES
%8C ¥ %<CL 85 82°201'09% 00°€8S'SPLS ZL08Y'68%
%ESE6 %LYVS 00°065'L$ 00°00L°L$ 000LLS
%00°001 %000 00°00v$ 00°00t$
vZoe |1eosid pZ0T |BoSld  9JuBlEA veoc v2o¢ |easid
o, 3@bpng 9, wadg ¢ 196png 1e6png [enoy
Buiwewsy  196png Bulueiway alA

20z ‘6¢ Aenuged ‘Aepsiny) Buipu3 syluop wbI3 sys 1o

196png jenuuy snsiaa sasuadx]

10141S1d NOILYLINYS STTNAHINGHVO-NIANIN

vRD IVIOL LS

(21empieH) wawdinb3y 800 05
siuuad %§ saa4 bulld 6¢
asuadxg uonensIuIwpY JSYi0 8
Buipuog 5 asueInsy| /{
asuadx3 uonR9|loD H/Y 9F

sigeQ peg sy

~dsSOW



%L8'LY %6185 89°508°28% 000000LZ$ ZCEV6LTTLS $334 TYNOISS3408d TV1OL LS
%6V 1L %158 v9'SYE'vS 00°000°0£$ 9¢°¥G9'GZ$ upny g Bununodoy 9g
%60°8¢ %16°LL G0'8ZY'8$ 00°000°0¢$ G6'LLS LTS §BOIAI9E |BUOISSBJOI YOBL/LI GS
%S0°Cy %S6°LS ST e TAR 1) 00°000'0F}$ GL'SYL'E9% buussuibuz v
%V6°LL %9082 YL LLL'8TS 00°000°0¥$ 9z'zZZ'LLS |eba €5

$334 TVNOISS3I10Ud 29

¥202Z |edsid $20Z |edsly  SJueleA vzoe ¥zoz 1easid
o, 10bpng 9 wadg ¢ 196png 196png lenjpy
Buinewsy  19bpng Buiueiway aLA
ASON
20z ‘6z Aenige ‘Aepsiny ] Buipuz sywopy ybi3 ey Jo
196png [enuuy snsiaa sasuadx]

12141S13 NOILVLINYS 3TIAHINAHVD-NIANIW



o | #bey

50'£88'9 $ SR sjevnway) buissadong 0L0-00P0S|  ZEEOOLOOVYZOZ| LLO-¥Z/PL/T-143 “2U] ‘epeABN 40 Auedwod Jaydiey] ¥202/bL/Z|LE
16°2LL $ 19UIBY) auoydajaL 0L0-00r¥9|  ¥2£210829:510| OLO-¥2/PL/T-143 ssauIsng winildads ¥202/¥L/2|0€
9T'LSL'L $ sadnnas [eba) (eba7 0L0-00LLL 97£9¢82| 600-¥2/¥L/2-143 dT1 YIWHM B TTINS veoe/vL/2|62
00°000°L s Bunynsuo)-buuiesy SINNIIS (BUOISS0L YIFL/L 0L0-0051L 20SEL08LLE2| BOO-VZ/PL/E-143 SLHOISLYVINS vene/rLz|8e
00°00F'S $ uondidsgns a:emyos Ja € sasuadx3 predaag 010-00821 20SEL0EL1EZ| BOO-¥Z/¥L/2-143 SLHOISLYVINS veoe/vL/e|ee
009 $ sisheuy qe Bunsay qeq BLO-00K2S LLPLOENY 2655 “INI 'SV WIILATYNY 3LVLS ¥IATIS vzoz/viiz|9e
05260°7 $ MBIASY uelg Avatd SRl Buusauibug 0L0-002L2 2600-¥2| L00-¥2/¥1/2-193 “INI*S1d3INCJ I2WN0OSIY ¥202/v1/2|52
05LL6 $ weny3 3dUBUAUIEW T sieday JIoAIFSaY BLO-00LSS v600-¥2| L00-¥2/¥L/2-143 "INI*S1d3INCI I0UN0S3Y v202/¥L/2|92
00°058 $ ssauIsng RIS Buussuibul 0L0-00ZLL £600-¥2} L00-v2/¥L/Z-143 “INI'SLAIINGD 3DUN0STY vzoz/vL/e|€e
SLESB'E 5 qeyay s0daxeiul aIo¥o QeYY WSAS UoII3|0D) 0L0-00¥91 L600-vZ| L00-¥2/¥1/Z-143 “INI'SLdAINGD 3DWN0OSHY vzoz/vL/z|ee
(¥ $ sye0g Buim pay saiddng & Juswdinb3 Aajes 0L0-00£05| 09Z9€00LLOVZOZ| 900-¥Z/¥L/2-143 LDV JOVINVAQY SSINISNE INIM A3 reoe/vLiz[1z
05'29L'E $ adueuAIEW pue sieday srueualuep 1 sieday 010-00905 LiSL| S00-¥2/bL/2-143 INI'SNOILIIOS TOULNOD % ¥IM0d vzoz/vi/e|oz
00°009°L $ ainie] ;eyeaig| 51800 eday ainjrey JaAeaug UIBIN R 020-00905 £151| S00-vE/pi/e-143 INI'SNOILATOS TORINGD B ¥IMOd ¥202/vL/Z|61L
05°255'L $ ssiedas aunjie] Jsxeaig|  s1s0) sreday aunjiey 1axelg UIEI AR 020-00905 OLSL| S00-¥2/¥L/2-143 "IN 'SNOLLANOS TOULNOD B ¥IMOd vE0L/rLIE| 8L
L7'86 $ 3ueUNUIEW puE siedsy aaueuzluepy g sieday 010-00905 LSBLEL L6SS ISNOH SLHvYd 3HL pe0z/vLiz|LL
S8°0£L $ 3UEUNIEW puE sitedsy aueualuely R sieday 010-00905 LPELEL L6SS ISNOH SLHvYd IHL v202/rLiz|9L
srvoL $ aueudUIEW pue sileday sueuaiuely 13 sieday 010-00905 PEELEL L6SS ISNOH SLuvd JHL v20z/¥L/2|S0
86°LZ $ aupUAUIEW pue Sieday ajueualURN 73 SIIEdaY OLO-00905 S¥S621 1655 3SNOH SLuvd IHL vZ0z/vL/Z|vh
YZ'ELG $ ajueuIIEW pue sHeday ajueudep 1§ Sileday 0L0-00905 0veg00vL6 0655 swalsAs ABiau] esapy p202/¥L/2|€L
0¥y $ SA0[S SJUUN sanddng = wawdinbg Aajes CL0-00£05 688VS 6955 N SIA0TD SN0 p202/¥L/2|2L
00°0¥5 $ Jenuuy-Juswadueyul fddy ssep 30IMAS HEMYOS 0L0-0LE£SS 850¥001 8855 SUOINOS AIBMYOS NYI P202/¥1/Z| 10
0002 $ 234 jueg safiey yueg 0L0-05£¥9 ZBEROLE) POO-72/¥L/2-143 SINAYIS 1IA3H LOJIT INOH vzoz/vLiZ|0L
16'6E5°Z $ ajueuduiel pue sieday 2ueuaiutey ) sieday 010-00905 9751466| vOO-v2/vL/z-143 $321AY3S LIQ3YD 10430 INCH ¥Z02/¥1/2|6

zZerLY H stang asuadxg oany @ o) 0L0-00515 98892LE-54D| £00-¥2/¥L/2-143 o "ABasug siak)y vZ02/¥1/2(8

00°SZL°L H BJUBLAUIEK 3IYAA adUeUBIUERIN 73 SJeday 010-00905 WAPZZZLO £855 LNIIN 31DIHIA ALNNOD S¥12004 p202/YLiZ|L

¥O'L6 $ aurjoses asuadx3 01y | JoruL 0L0-00515 BLOVESYS| Z00-vZ/pL/2-143)  SMIAIBS PIE)) SSBUISNG 0IEX3L PUB UCIASYD vZ02/vL/2|9

0000Z'2L  $ 235 Bunipny upny 1 Bununoyy 0L0-00E1LL 6¥E629| 100-¥2/F1/2-143 NOT3N AFSYD vZo2/vLiz|s

iz $ spijosotg [esoway 2bpnis 0L0-00805 ZBLLLZ 9955 HONYY A1LN3S vZ0Z/YLIZ |

0LLE $ spijosorg [encway 8bpnis 0L0-00805 zizne 9855 HONYY ATLN3S v202/¥L/2|€

re9geEsL  $ axueUUIEN pue sieday aueuRep B sieday 0L0-00905]  L-PBE0E0OMS 5855 271 Assuiyoe Aeisuos ¥202/9/2|2

zgosz'sls  § qeyay 101da3su| QIOYO qeyay WaIsAs UoI3|0) 010-00¥51 £00-LNIED 855 uoIINASUED g B D #202/9/2 |1

Iunowy Yaayd uoiduosaq vonsesuel BWEN JUNODY 1Y  JIGUINN JUNODY TS  JAQUINN 3XMOAU] # MDD HOY N NIIYD J0PUIA e JuAwhed # ur

ve/6e/2 - ve/Lie

LNRAOIDY TYHINID - ¥31S51934 MI3HD




t jo Z sfed

98'€2 $ saiddng Bues;y sanddng uay 1 Buiuea)) 010-0€EP9 ¥Z1L02083] 800-v2/12/2-133 Aueg J1RIS EPRAIN vz0z/12/2|29
S6'PL $ asuadixg uoieonp3 Joiesadg Buiuies ) fuonesnp3 sioieiadg 0L0-0060% ¥ZEZLOMY| B00-FZ/12/2-143 queg 3iel5 epeAsN re0z/12/z(19
00°2vL $ uoneanp3 io1es3do Sulutes | /uoneanp3 sioleado 0L0-0060% v2rOLOMY| BOO-$2/12/2-143 jueg aels epersN|  Z0Z/1L2/2|09
00522 $ uoneanp3 Jojessdo Bujuies | /uonednp3 siolesado 01000605 +ZE0L0MY| 800-FZ/12/2-133 jueg 31elS EPEASN ¥202/12/2|6§
zz'sor $ (@auenduio) qeT) 1534 vy Bunsa) qe 0LO-00F2S p241108| 800-v2/12/2-143 Jueg 31e1S epeadn v202/12/2|88
Z60LL $ sajddng ge saiddng qe 0L0-00EZS ¥290108D] 200-¥2/12/2-143 Jueg e epensn v202/12/2|L§
0EYe $ ajueUBIUIRY pue sieday a3ueUUIEN 7@ sieday 010-00%05 +2EZL0SD| B00-p2/1E/2-143 jueg 1exs epesaN v20z/12/2|98
S6'€6 $ ajueuBUIEW pue sieday sueusiuieyy 1 saeday 010-00905 ¥2LTLOSD| 800-FE/LT/2-L43 Aueg LIS epend reoz/iz/z|ss
96'95Y $ wawdinb3 3o auempieHAuzwdinb3 a0 0L0-00£59 ¥2511053| 800-p2/12/2-143 Aueg 1els RPeAsN v202/12/2|vs
1oL $ saiddns Buiues)) sayddng uayony 1 Buiuea|d 0L0-0££49 vZPZLOWY| 800-F2/12/2-143 Aueg 3)els eped veoe/12/z|es
66'C $ afiesolg auoyg asuadiq wed N0 010-00£05 PZZLLONY| 800-¥2/12/2-L93 Jjueg 31615 ePeAdN vzoe/12/z|2s
96'€2 $ seiddng uayny sayddng uayiny 19 Buea)y 010-08£¥g P2rOLOWY | 800-¥2/12/2-143 Jueg aiels epens veoz/1z/z|us
09°280'2 $ uoresnp3 roiesedo Buiures | /uaneanp3 siciesadg 010-00605 vZe0L0SL| 800-v2/12/2-143 Jueg a1e15 epenan vzoz/12/e|os
5165 s Jueuduiepy pue sieday sueuiuiey 1g shieday aLO-0090% 12225v61 865¢ Auedwo Addns e -saasepoW LTI N A [ 4
oLvLy s ase27 Jaido) asempleHwawdinb] axpo 0L0-00£59 0LBL209L| £00-¥2/12/2-143 431 ¥202/12/Z|8F
00'09% $ saa1u95 Buiuea)d sayddng uaydyy 79 Buea)s 0L0-0EEvY 689295 1655 Z33d YNVOI ve0e/12/Z|L¥
00°555 $ B2UBUBJUIBIY SI0SUS SED saiddng g wawdinby Aajes 010-00£0S oseg 9655 DNIIDIAGIS LNIWIELSNI v202/12/2|9%
188z $ 2oueunue pue saeday aueualueN 1 sieday 010-00905| LOO¥B0SIIELOS| 900-p2/12/2-143 uonesodio) exolen r2oz/12/z|s¢
L8t $ sjany asuadxy oiny 1 ¥aNIL 010-00515 0BSLPLE-SA3| S00-¥2/12/2-143 O™ “ABaau3 siad)4 veoz/tz/e| vy
00’ $ sanddng uayuy salddng uayauy % Buues)> 0L0-0EEVS €82969| VOO-¥E/LZ/7-143 $3D1AYIS 333402 IDIOHD 15U veoe/Lz/e e
08'528'L $ JaWISINGUIISY UOIING asuadx3 weld Y10 010-00£05 PL20¥T] £00-ve/LE/Z-143 215581 '|3ja3u vzoz/1e/z|ey
00°0LL $ WRLISINGUIY L) J0je1ad0 asuadxg jueld Jayio 010-0020% ¥esLe] 200-v2/12/2-143 eseg v13g rzo2/Lz/e(Ly
00'0ZL'L $ 52135 || SAIAIBS [BUOISSEL0Id UIRL/1] 010-0051L Sr2LS $655 ouy ) pasenbs 3 573 pzoz/1z/e|oy
90°801°L $ SIS || SANMIIS [PUOISS3I0Id UDBL/LI 010-00SL2 §SELS 5655 Sup ) pasenbs 3 523 v202/12/2|6€
000211 $ SIS | SIS [PUOISS340Id UDBL/LI 010-005LL 0S€1S $655 au) 3 palenbs 3 523 veae/iz/e|es
§8901°L $ 334 Wwepy Bay 19104 asuadxg UOHENSILILIPY JAYIO 010-00159 QSONFZ PSS YIUNSYIUL-AEID ALNNOD SYI9N0A veoz/1e/z|Le
00669 $ XVOD 1R suoydajaL 010-001+9| ¥2L0Z0106+26812| L00-P2/12/e-143 SUONEJIMWIWO]) JBLRYD veoz/L12/e|9E
0Z'862 $ spljosolg [eaoway abpnis 010-00805 pLeLLz €655 HONVH A1LIN38 ye0z/12/z|s¢E
95652 $ spijosoig (esoway abpnis 010-00805 09z1L1Z €655 HONVY A1LN3Z veoz/12/z|vE
S29sL $ adods Jo 10 SIDUMIS JEUOISSIIOI] YIBL/LI 010-005L2 ELvEL| ZL0-FP2/PL/T-143 277 ‘dnoso ABojouy3aL Hasany UaLeMm reoz/vL/z|eE
0Z's1LS $ 595 320 SIS BEMIYOS 0L0-0L£S9 v6ZEL| 210-F2/¥L/T-143 I71 'dnosn ABojounyda) nasany UalieM reoz/vLiz|ze
Junowy 33y uondulsaq uopesurs) SWEN JUNO0Y 1D JIGURN JUNOIY 19 JAUINN 3NoAu} # 3YOHOY JWEN NI ICPUIp )k Juuled ¥ aury

veleT/T - ve/vie
ANMO2DY TVHINID - ¥I1SI93H MNDOIHD




# 4o € abed

o001l $ [emauay |) Joresado asuadxy Jueld JYi0 0L0-00£08 9zz0ve| 100-p2/82/Z-19 uapaaig pemp3 v202/82/2|€6
¥0L92'L $ sjueusjuiely pue siieday auveualuiely R sieday 010-00905|  LOO'LPZHOYBO0S £095 fddng 5111393 3jepod v202/82/2|26
2rvre $ spijoseig [eAouwy 2BprYS 010-00805 #8ZLLT 2095 HONYY A1LNIE v202/82/2|16
09°8£E'L $ abes ainzy SINAIDS [BUDISSA0] YIAL/L] 010-0051L2 8S084| £LO-v2/12/2-143 271 'dnouo ABojouya) uaIeAy UdLIEM v202/12/Z|06
L6'9PE’L $ abesp anzy SNNIBS [ELIOISSAJOIY I3 L/L) 010-005LL 9£SEL| EL0-¥R/12/2-143 J71 'dneusy ABojouyrs) 1vIaAY usLIEM ve0e/12/2|68
0T 16E $ ysea), pue J3em sanin 010-0050S ¥ZL0Z 1095 NIGNIW 40 NMOL ¥202/12/2|88
reovL'l $ 80 JSAMYINDS saniun £10-0050% £120¢2] ZL0-¥2/12/Z-L3 40D SYD LSIMHLNOS r202/12/2|L8
£E066E°LL $ JwAod sievway) Buissadold 010-00K0S seeesszet| LLo-v212/2-143 271 SINTI0S vz0z/12/z|98
009 $ sisheuy et Bunsay qel 010-00r2S 92601 ENY 0095 JNI'SEYT TWIILATYNY 3LYLS H3ATUS v20z/12/2[58
002y s sisheuy qen Bunsay ge 0L0-00125 £980LENY 0095 "INISEYT TWIILATYNY ILYLS YIAS veoz/Iziz|ve
00°S§ $ sishjeuy qeq Bunsay ge 0L0-00125 STEOLENY 0095 “INI'SEYT WIILATYNY JLYLS HIATS v20z/12/2|e8
00°'S6 s sisheuy geq Bunsa) gen 0L0-00125 #Z60LENY 0095 DNI"SAYT TYDILATYNY ILYLS ¥IANS yeoz/L2/z|es
00°zy $ sishjeuy qe Bunsa) qeq 0L0-00F2S 0ZS0LENY 0095 "ONI ‘SIY1 TWIILATYNY ILYLS ¥3A IS reoz/1e/e(18
00°L9€ $ sisfeuy geq Bunsa) qeq 0L0-00v2S Z060LENY 0095 “ONI‘S8YT IWDILATYNY 3LVLS YIAS ¥z0z/12/z|08
66'LE $ uleWOQ AUSAIM $3IAIIG BIEMYOS 010-0LESH 800¥L 6655 OlanLs xaas ye0z/12/z|6L
gEesLsL  § uoness dwng ABisu3 AN saun dwing 19 10AII53Y 010-00£55 £120v2008} 010-v2/12/2-143 ABiauz AN vzoz/12/2|8L
6L0%E'SL § el ey ABiaul AN s3mIN 010-00505 £LZ0PZ06LL} 600-FZ/L2/2-143 ABiau3 AN vz0e/12/2|LL
8€'96 $ Sueudre pue sieday FuBUUERK 1P Sieday 010-00905 $ZOELONG; BOO-¥T/1T/2-143 Jueg ale1s epesdN reoe/i2/e|9L
86'6€ $ saiddns 2130 asuadxg ¥ saddng a0 010-00£F9 PZLLLONI| 800-¥2/12/2-143 ueg 21e1S BpEAIN vzoz/1z/e|se
0095 $ syesg 0607 asuadhq g sayddns 200 010-00E¥9 PELZLONH| 800-v2/12/2-143 Aueg 2IEIS BPEAIN veoz/1z/e|vL
8rLL $ sanddng #2110 asuadxg i sayddns 330 0L0-008¥9 PESLLOWH| R00-¥2/L2/2-143 queg NelS epeAsN rzoe/12/2|6L
or'8Le $ wawdinby 3310 arempieH/usidink3 3010 0L0-00£59 VZZLLOWH| 800-+2/12/Z-143 yueg el eperdN reoz/1z/z|eL
av'or $ saiddns 32140 asuadxy i sanddns 330 0L0-00E¥9 PZYOLOWH| BOO-¥Z/Le/2-143 yueg alels epessy rzoe/12/z[1L
L0°6S $ sanddns a0 asuadx3 % sanddns 350 OLO-00EK9 PZEOLOWH| BOO-¥Z/1Z/2-L141 queg elS epessn veoz/12/z|0L
1659 $ sanddns 220 asuadyxy % sanddng WO 0L0-00£%9 vZr0LOBY| B0O-vT/LE/2-143 queg ANels epeasy veoe/12/2|69
66'6Z $ abeisog sbesog 010-005F9 $ZR2L0DT| 800-r2/L2/2-143 JyUEg 31815 EPRAIN veoe/12/z|89
00°000'E $ 31emyos sasuadx3 predaid 0L0-00821 YZEZLOST| BOO-¥E/le/2-143 queg 21e15 EPEASN vzoz/12/z(te
LO'EE $ saiddns 210 asuadxg g sayddns 210 0L0-00E¥9 ¥28110971| 800-¥2/12/2-143 JUEG €IS BPEASN vzoz/1z/Z|99
609 $ saiddns 3230 asuadxg g sayddns 300 0LO-00EF9 ¥2rLLOST| BOO-¥Z/1Z/2-143 Jueg 8IS epesdy ¥z0z/12/2|s9
9€'292 $ saliddng 82130 asuddxg 1y sayddng 30 010-00E¥9 ¥EELL0DT| 800-72/12/2-143 queg Nels epeasy veoz/1e/e|vo
ELELSL $ sayddng 230 asuadxg % saddng 220 010-00£%9 #EOLLODT| 800-¥2/12/2-143 queg NBIS EPeAIN veoe/12/z|€9
JUBOWY NI uopdussag vopsesuest FWEN JUNOINY 1D  JAGUINN JUNOIY 1S  JIGUINN NOAU] #132YD/HOY awep YD 10puap  Aeq iudwhed g aur]

vz/eT/T - v/

LNNODIVY TYHINID - ¥3451934 NO3IHD




t Jo ¢ abey

sasuadag uag-03
1507 aInjie4 Jaxealg

sasuadxy jeudes pusbay
6LOSL'BYE {S439YD p5) SHIAYJ JO JunowY |40L
LL6EL'9 $ Sjeanuay>d senway) Buisseroid 0L0-00P0S|  B9L00LOOVYZOZ| 900-+2/82/2-143 3Ul ‘epenaN Jo Auedwio) sayzeyy vZ02/82/2E01
09°ZFL $ ANAIRS YAVIS slueuAUIE @ seday 010-0090S NI-5222800( 500-v2/82/2-143 NI 'STOYINOD 0253 p202/82/2|201
00°005' $ UeUUEW pue seday acueusiely g sHeday 010-00908 S9L9 8095 IDIAYIS NIDOD ¥202/82/2{101
43743 $ JIOA 13qWIa23J-IIQUIBAON auoydapl 0L0-00¢¥9 £B0L5L000°QD| vOO-¥2/82/2-143 ou| jeua) Bury v202/82/2|001
gLLgL'sze  $ qeyay | QIDYD 10} § auled GeYY WRISAS UOND3|I0D 010-00+91 S00-LNIY® 5095 UOROMISUO I 1] D v202/92/2|66
00'009°'L $ Wiel 72 Jieday sunjied J54esg 5350 Jledy 2unjled 1Mea.g UIBW WBY 020-00305 Si51| £00-v2/82/2-143 DN 'SNOLLNTOS 10¥iNOD % 43M0d veoz/ez/z(e6
05798 $ wiepy 13 sieday aunjie4 ssyesag 51507 Jleday ain|iey 1aye3id Ul WY cwo..oomow LLSL] £00-v2/82/2-143 DI 'SNOLLNTOS TOYLINOD % ¥3IM0Od ¥202/82/2|16
00'sSL'6 $ aueuAue pue sieday Nueusue 7@ siseday 01000905 9151 | £00-v2/82/2-143 INISNOILNIOS T0YANOD 28 4IM0Od reue/82/2(96
00°000°0Y $ UBWSSASSY UOUIPUCT Jayue|) QEYSY 21310007 27| JBILIET 0r0-00891 1981850021 #0095 I HAH v202/82/2|56
8§°LL6 $ saucyd 1183 auoydajay 0LO-00¥9 ¥2026120| 200-v2/ee/z-143 ALIMIEOW 181V ve0e/8e/z|ve

Junowy ¥ay) uopduasaq uonresuesy SWEN JUNONY 1D  JIqUNN JUNODY 1D  JIGUINN IDJOAT] £ WIN/HOVY FtWeN §Iatp) JOPUIA eq Judwhed # Bur]

ve/ez/z -ve/L/e

ANNOJDVY TYUINID - HILSI93H HIIHD




| gc | bBeg

£rEi9erL  $ (98D $7) SHIY)D Jo Juncwy |ero]

SL26¥ $ advoa v20z/62/c ud|  obiey siam - Bubpay) jlosied - ysed 911-00001 Q¥4 ¥2/62/2 dd 18¥E SOOOMTIVINS S VavEYve veoz/ee/e|Le
00°0£8'L s QUYO8 +702/67/2 AQ-4d|  oBuey siiam - Bunpay) |loided - ysed 911-0000L| OWE ¥2/62/2 A0-4d| QU-¥ZEZZOHIY usodag 12841Q) 30} PASN M, re0z/6z/z|92
05 ¥e $ QUv04 v20Z/62/2 L¥6 G34 saxe | |[osded painddy 0L0-00€0Z| QYE PE/62/¢ Ud-L¥6|  LP6-¥Z6ZZ0OHIV Lt 0Bey sjlam vZ0z/6e/e|se
1 4 L3 h_cwco—a - 384 m:__ﬁr.mI S0 soxe| __O._hwm painiy QLO-00502 PZe0-9t 00-¥2/82/20-143 YD S J3INSESI] RIS epeAIN vNON\mN\N e
£7°815°81 $ duRINSU| YYeay pZOe7 Y rew slyauag |e3IPaN 020-00205 EE0-LOLLL| £00-¥2/82/20-143 HLTVIH NMOLIWOH veoe/ee/e| €2
20z $ 23ueINSU| YieIH pZOT YRIen SWNIWRIG BIUBINSU L3 |eaH 3210y 010-00608 €E0-10LL4| €00-P2/R2/20-142 HL1Y3IH NAMOLIWOH v202/8e/2|22
Lty $ aaue.nsu] Aejunjop saxe | ||oMed paIndoy 010-00£02 8520208 £9605| <00-¥2/82/20-143 3417 Je1uojos vzoz/eei| e
96'PIL'T $ SUONNQINUE) - YSH sHjauag [eAIPAN 020-00205 P26TTOVSH| 100-¥2/82/70-143 73S Wilemieuag ¥Z0z/82/2|02
99°0LL $ ¥20Z G234 - 3IURINSU| UOISIA Slyausg |eaipan 020-00205 9£9898618 08vt (LY} DNI "T8¥D NOISIA dSA v202/Le/T|61L
LAl $ ¥Z07 924 - 3dURINSU) UOISIA SWNILLALE 3OULINSU| YHERH 33103y 010-00608 9£9898618 08re (LY} DN 38V NOISIA dSA ¥z02/L2/2|8t
BEEIL $ Apfeam-1g - woddns ppy> saxe ||osked painddy 0L0-00£02 vZLOE0-9E| L00-¥E/12/20-143 AAYIS - WuN QI 7 (190 85 veoz/Le/z|LL
9T LIY'L $ FJURINSU| )1 ] [€U3Q sHyauRg [eAPBN 020-00205 £25101 BLVE SLIINIE dNOYD - I4NLIN re0z/iz/e|sL
958 $ 2duBINSU| 3] K [EIUAC SWNWB)d 3dUINSY| YijeaH 22Ny 0L0-00608 £2510L 6LVE SLHANIE dNOYD - IILIN rZ0z/Le/T|se
gezog’Lz  § ¥Z02-024 - SH3d AN Alyon suyeusg safojdw] g saxe] |(osled 010-00205 vZ20d| LO0-FE/12/20-143|  waishs wawanay seakodwy Jiand vZ02/12/2| ¥
L1668 § 44VIS ¥20Z/91/2 A0-¥d|  obied suam - Bumday) |joaked - ysed 9LL-0000L| J4VLS PE/9L/Z AQ-Yd[  QQ-¥ZILZOHIY wsodag 1530Q 104 PASN IM ¥202/91/Z| €1
¥0'L6E°9 $ ¥202/9L/2 Lb6 Q34 44Y1S saxe) (|0skeg paInddy 010-00£02 VZ/IL/Z Wd-LP6|  Lt6-beILZOHDY L6 oBaed sj|lam rzo2/91/z)21L
000LL'L $ puny |eninpy £Sp saxe| Josheq painidy 0L0-00£02 ¥2oL2o|  Lo0-¥e/aL/z-143 [e3ueuy edop ¥z0z/9L/e|1L
BEEIL $ Apieam-1g - uoddng pay) saxe| |joshed panady 0L0-00£02 pZILE0-9E| 200-¥Z/9L/T-143 NAYDS - UM 9siq g |10 #1els ¥20z/9L/e|oL
BY'8F $ | S - WeWaIsINqIDY AIEJIPIKY SWINIWSig SIURINSUJ YiesH 22138y 0L0-00608 vZs120| S00-v2/St/2-143 S ¥z0z/51L/2|6
8V'6.12 $ | S1-wewasinquiIay aleapan SWMWald B2UeINSU} Y ESH 22405y 010-00608 €25LLL]  ¥OO-¥T/SL/Z-143 SL reoz/si/z|e
9L'9g $ | Hf - wawasinquuidy sIe2ipapy SWNIWSG IULINSU) YieaH s3may 010-00608 gasiit]  go00-v2/SLiE-193 Hf ¥20z/51/2|L
svizy $ | 48 - wswasinquiay aledpap SWINIW2I1g S2UEINSY) yieaH 3m3y 010-00608 £251LL| ZoO-¥2/SL/2-L43 49 v20e/SL/e|9
LTEPE $ Qr - uSWISINGLIIRY UEIIPIY SWiniwaad dueinsu) yijeay aamay 01000608 €eSLLL|  LOO-¥Z/5LE-1d3 ar we0e/sLie|s
E0°6E6'9E  $ 34V1S p202/2/2 A0-Yd]  0Bueg sam - Bunpayd |ioided - ysed GLL-00001 | 44VLS ¥Z/2/2 AQ-dd|  QQ-PZZOTOHDY ysodag 1ang 104 pasn M ve0z/zie|v
LS88E'9 $ ¥202/2/2 L¥6 Q34 44v1S saxe] ||oshed painday 0L0O-00£02 vZ/efe Hd-1v6|  LrE-P2ZOTOHDY Lt obied s|lom v202/2/2|€
00'0LL') s pund |erany /St soxe |joided paindy 0L0-00E02 ¥zzozo|  2o0-ve/e/e-Lid (enueuly edop, ¥20e/z/e|e
BEEIL $ |  Awpuow-nuas - uoddng ppyd saxe], ||01hed painddy 010-00E02 t2e0z0-9¢|  100-ve/e/e-143 NAYDS - HUN Q51G 7 (03 21elS vz0e/z/z(1
Jnouny y23y7) uondudseq uonaesues] JWEN JUNCDY 19  JaqUINN Junoddy 19 IR 3210AU] # XPYI/HIY sweN WA Jopusp, e uswley 4 2un)

ve/62/T - vE/LIE
LNNODDY TIOUAV - H31S1934 MD3HD




T ey

[ T T . ) !I-.—Sl—.ill—:gl- TRaT u".a TSV EY T OFETWT L) lﬂ...]jﬂl
— Pk L — - w1
_;ﬁuuﬂl_.ﬁ_..ﬂ.l.._.. ..... e n—amwu__ LG I’ T[T Toreeseq] TUnGoTy HUAG o sP |
Tea T TN0IoY WD WOl Ll g8 |
[ T — I T R ey
| TR H ) h I L T T [ Temmcealeeeece sune) teebie
[ 1 . ! A . e
WWRYEE  § [ L1 Tlscve'ros & | w8 | Grearuil + wrnrucl %] I s L L
B T [ S| 0air 2 IS S| trRers H BT | FL T
L 82L 5 ] ] Treei 1T 3 g B BT g | Trviwlry ot siag
T G HEIRES STeawoTT BN B BETL T[T BGEEES [ T =
(1 ] T Twwme F|arar Tevir LG Tloveost LD HEEETE S| itie T AR IS ROAAASH
S L3 Tlerisie LD Tlsczist HEED B LI T gLl T S—
B0 ] _ 43T HELD HEZED) (3 LN C e 3 L L TTOET T S T [ TR
BTIRTLGr T 1 PRBLCTE sferetiee BT BELZE HELZ S Thetiew YT B 13 aa[
ELET £21 STTVL 0L Tjomic S[osTsie S 3 T I [ S TR & [ R [] L O] ml
+. e i 4 — L — FoRdEE |
Tveals 8| [ ¥ 3 |[oFIne 8| awieR ¥ | eaksr ..—I.E._.-s # | soroscoez $ WEITZL 8| Wi 8 (1 i G0 mi(n |
WHET ! [T 5 1 s T ) WG P
- T T ey e AL
ouisEL L1 i 5] HEC B G G T T eveoc T [T T
FRLTLLE L 5 L T - QWAL LPT H Ol 5[ ¥ ai
EHiOe T I 1 L L T T T B TewesnqueeY AR 38d
B ] Taaz A B EEE B § ez ¥ | LrTsr L i o [T
B T AT S[teiezl BT (AT HIELEAD [ B [] TR
C I | D . e WS ¥ T - | i 7 foae 3 wEuny)
EEEd [ 000CFS § | o6 aos R B BEEEES LT | T LT
IS T 0009T N ooy “FlooseE HLEEDD ¥ 000055 HELIRL G T o AR
ELRT ] “Trwenn “T[treete T 16sirss DD G THeET T [ aorve G ] = T
I 1 T T e S ¢
Meoseeiaz 3| 1800 56L S iavirene S rICIr s L V| rEEses T S| 06 80T L6 L ¥ o LT T
oL et e, e i s S 2 = e i L ,.
5 1 | |
= i
| e ¥20Z 62 HTiGe 3 BLIpu3 SUIMoW 10013 bl 03 |“
ANIWILYLS AHYWNS LNNO!
TTIAMENGUVE-NONIN ._




L]

¥ T OITALFFE § celomn 3§ EeMwAD  § OnEneEs T wowasy  § coroen § SLNNGOON TIV REVO TWAOL &
T T
] ¥ 7 oo ¥ oroow UL L] Tiwww ¥ o ¥ [ orow | "
3 " " e LnQuIEy |9
¥| | ] T | w
T 5 B T [oaom TR T[T T T |00 o ﬁ.m_ WG 18 111 Sowneg
C
i 1
| L] 1 L] ]
.".,: T =1 TINCIIY RN 1 JHORIL | B
1 .“. . $a83 pun g SURLTIIAL
T 1 EE e T
- e -
. = o 1 E ¥ ¥ W L |0
]
1 | L
1 | 1 TR W0 0 W 0
[T I TR LI HEES ¥ B o
o q“ m T TIUNG55Y S0 WY MSLR,
| 5 1] LE 5] ¥ ﬂ.._. [ T ]
]
| - ¥ ¥ ¥ | [ W Jo ly o) coweren |08
700 o oae &7 13| | T30 500 200 0 T _ SINGI0Y MG 01 IEUR] |
T THE CHE B | m MEERT T TR vy |8
[&irim i [y 1 L3R LY ] T[T B EEE] b e 1.3.!3& L B d peuied e[ ¥
. E T e T SeD) Lo, JOfSUL),
B W R . i I A g ¥ o I [T g
”
[] [ QLA 0 ey o lep ) sowemal [ 17
LTI __af_: EETE g T L T LT 5 [ T LR (LA ST [ e el ]

E ¥ 1 g T L
[eTom T Taen [l —leaE - 3 [#m Tiecm G T TTeceE 3 = 3
CE T oo T [ooooaost T [ 00000 081 5 [ 060s00s1 $ ] 00000051 $ [ 00000051 §7 00'00¢0Sk T TEIe Ty WoH sorsei

TSTES 6F §|eTwE BELGE TIPS e B EXGE] HEEE] PG B B [ T 3
-
[ [ i
11 - L] 1 : t ] 3 - _ .
PE0R 62 1L 3 DU SO 14013 9 ] =
= m.-zmiw._.e..._.m AYYWINNS INNODDY

TTIAMINGUVE-NOHIN




Agenda Item 3

District Manager’s Repd; |

Items in this Section Include:

v' April 2024 District Manager’s Report
v’ March 2024 Capacity Report



/N

MGSD Mmc{en _Gardnervnlle' Sanitation District
District Manager's Report
o — April 2, 2024
CAPACITY ALLOCATIONS/PURCHASES: VENDORS AND CONTRACTS:
® 17.25 EDV’s sold ¢ None
WILL SERVES LETTERS ISSUED: STAFF/OFFICE ITEMS:
. None e None

MEETINGS ATTENDED AND SCHEDULED:
3/7 Smart Cover training PROJECTS IN THE DISTRICT:

¢ Martin’s Meadows in progress
3/19 ProWest meeting to finalize ARC GIS e Kingsbury Estates in progress
a1 SNC ting f halt maint ¢ The Downs in progress
AL LR SR e ¢ The Village at Monte Vista in progress

LINE REHABILITATION AND PLANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS:
. Asphalt patches and seals to be scheduled

L Boiler #2 installation to be scheduled in May, tentatively
. SCADA software, licensing, and server upgrades are being completed
® Breaker repair is moving forward
o Hwy 395 and Hwy 88 lining has been completed
OTHER:

e 10 Wheeler is being repaired at International
Respectfully submitted,

Peter V. Baratti, District Manager



\\r . MONTHLY REPORT OF
@ CAPACITY SOLD
MGSD March 2024
Yinaen S
Date Project Name Developer Address EDU's Sold mm“w—.__.: 9 Amount Collected Approved By | Comments
® | capaci Total
pacity o
3/4/2024 |Village at Martin's Meadows |Carter Hill Homes Cattail Cir 3.00 0.00|$ 17,325.00|% 17,325.00
3/7/2024 |Heybourne Meadows Tim Lewis 4.00 0.00|$ 23,100.00|$ 23,100.00
3/18/2024 |[Park Ranch Harvest Fac. David Park 1300 Buckeye Rd 10.25 0.00| $ 38,950.00 ;% 38,950.00
0.00| $ - 18 =
0.00| $ - 18 2
$ - IS -
$ - |8 -
$ - |8 -
$ - |8 &
$ - |8 =
$ - |8 =
$ - 18 -
$ - 1% &
$ - 1% -
$ K -
_ $ - |8 -
TOTAL EDU's
SOLD 17.250 $ 79,375.00 $ 79,375.00




Agenda Item 6

March 5" Regular Meeting Minutes

Items in this Section Include:

v’ March 5™, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes



Board of Trustees

ST W Minutes of Regular Meeting
MGSD Tuesday, March 5, 2024
.".I'\-'Dl'N-GAIDQI‘I'\::E':::“A"(\N DIATAR'T 6:00 p.M. Board Room
Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District
1790 Hwy. 395
Minden, Nevada
Board Members Present. Board Members Absent. Staff Members Present. Staff Members Absent:
Barbara Smallwocd None Peter Baratti Presley Cochran
Sondra Condron Cliff Simpson
Chris Shorten LaVonne Ghanavati
Ray Wilson April Burchett
Ted Thran Bill Peterson

Haley Mosegard
Bruce Scott
Others Present: Greg Reed, Craig Olson

1. Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Barbara Smallwood, Chairman.

2. Public Comment: Barbara Smallwood commented that she submitted her candidacy for the Gardnerville Town
Advisory Board. She started her public service there in 1989 and served until 1992 and hopes the town of
Gardnerville will honor her by allowing her to end her public service there.

3. District Manager’s Report: Peter Baratti reported that April Burchett submitted her letter of resignation for
retirement. Peter also reported that the Pista Grit has been rebuilt and has been in service for several weeks with
no issues. It cost $20,000 to rebuild, and saved the District hundreds of thousands of dollars by refurbishing it
instead of purchasing a new pump.

Discussion followed regarding the construction of the Virginia Ranch Estates.

4, Chairman’s Comment: There was no chairman’s comment.

5. Claims Review and Approval: Sondra Condron asked why the statement billing supplies line item is over
budget. LaVonne Ghanavati commented that the recent expense was for the rate increase notification letter that
was sent to customers as a courtesy to prepare for the rate increase in January 2024. Peter Baratti also
mentioned that eventually the new automated billing service will pay for itself, being that it has replaced the
time and cost to mail the bills out individually by hand.

Motion: To approve the claims received for January 2024 in the amount of $114,699.62 and the payroll-related expenses
paid during January 2024 in the amount of $160,663.17.

Made by: Ted Thran
Seconded by: Sondra Condron
Vote: Motion carried.
Ayes:  Smallwood, Condron, Shorten, Thran, Wilson
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None




: Minutes
5
AeaD March 5, 2024

V Page 2

6. Minutes of February 6, 2024 Regular Board Meeting: There was no discussion regarding the minutes.

Motion: To approve the minutes of the February 6, 2024 Regular Board Meeting as presented.

Made by: Ray Wilson
Seconded by: Chris Shorten
Vote: Motion carried.
Ayes: Smallwood, Condron, Shorten, Thran, Wilson
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None

7. HDR Assessment of Clarifiers: Craig Olson presented a report regarding the condition of the clarifiers at
the plant. There are several areas affected by corrosion as well as concrete that needs to be repaired. Trustee
Condron asked how soon the repairs would need to be completed and Peter said it would be added to the budget
for the next fiscal year.

8. FY 23-24 Designation of Auditor: April Burchett said there is one more year on Casey Neilon’s contract.
The motion is a formality to approve the designation of the auditor.

Motion: To approve Casey Neilon Inc as auditor for FY 23-24,

Made by: Ted Thran
Seconded by: Sondra Condron
Vote: Motion carried.
Ayes:  Smallwood, Condron, Shorten, Thran, Wilson
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None

9. MGSD FY 24-25 Tentative Budget Meeting and Public Hearing Dates: The Tentative Budget Meeting
was scheduled for Friday, April 12, 2024, at 12:00PM. The Public Hearing for the Final Budget was scheduled
for May 29, 2024, at 12:00PM.

10. Logo Approval: There were no comments or discussion regarding the new logo.

'r Motion: To approve MGSIDY’s new i(_)go as presex;t&i.

Made by: Chris Shorten
Seconded by: Sondra Condron
| Vote: Motion carried.
Ayes: Smallwood, Condron, Shorten, Thran, Wilson
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None




Minutes
MGSD
e March 5, 2024
Page 3

11. Attorney-Client Conference: Bill Peterson reported that he received a letter from Frank Flaherty stating
he formally disengaged from the Tribe. Pine View HOA feels they may have an alternative arrangement with
Corley Ranch but will need an amendment to their contract with MGSD to accommodate that. Bruce Scott
commented that an easement from Corley ranch to Pine View was recorded last Friday, in which the easement
has been identified but hasn’t been formalized with a legal description.

12. Engineer’s Report: Bruce Scott reported that they are doing plan reviews for Virginia Ranch.
Additionally, the Ironwood work is starting next week. Bruce reported that Presley is submitting a draft update
of MGSD’s emergency action plan to the state engineer’s office regarding a dam safety issue. Bruce also
reported that he received verbal approval from David Park to grant an easement for the sewer extension outside
the right-of-way, which the District will need to install a future sewer crossing.

13. Controller’s Report: LaVonne Ghanavati reported that she added a new scanner to process paper checks.
14. Administrative Report by Staff: April Burchett gave the trustees a draft policy manual to review.

15. Board Comment. Barbara Smallwood thanked April for her service to the District.

16. _Public Comment. There was no public comment.

17, Meeting adjourned 7:19 p.m.

Approved by the Board of Trustees as presented on:

By
Date Ted Thran, District Secretary




Agenda Item 7

District Manager Annual Review

Items in this Section Include:

Notice of Meeting to Peter Baratti

Proof of Service of Notice of Meeting to Peter Baratti

Memorandum from Jessica Kneefel, dated March 15, 2024

Total Value Compensation Statement FY 24-25

Last Year’s Performance Evaluation, 5/1/2022 to 4/1/2023

Current Employment Contract 7/1/2023 to 6/30/24, automatically renewed
to 6/30/2025 per Paragraph 2.a on Page 1

District Manager Job Description

District Manager List of Duties

'NENE UENRNEN

ANAN



March 15, 2024

Mr. Peter V. Baratti
1745 Oakwood
Minden, NV 89423

SUBJECT: Notice of Meeting of the MGSD Board of Trustees for Annual
Performance Evaluation and Possibility to Consider Your Character,
Alleged Misconduct, or Health

Dear Mr. Baratti:

This letter will serve to notify you of your annual performance review by the MGSD
Board of Trustees at its regular meeting on April 2, 2024. The meeting will begin at 6:00
p.m. at the MGSD Administrative Office, 1790 Hwy. 395, Minden, Nevada. This
meeting will be an open meeting, in accordance with NRS 233.031.1(b).

The Board may consider the following topics during the performance review: your
performance as District Manager, your job description, your job duties and matters

properly related thereto, as well as your character, alleged misconduct, competence, and
physical or mental health.

You are invited to attend the meeting, and you may have an attorney or other
representative of your choosing present at the meeting. You may also present written
evidence, provide testimony, and present witnesses. Please be aware that under NRS
233.031.1(b), the Board may not adjourn to a closed session to consider these items, and
all testimony will be given during an open meecting.

If the Board determines it necessary after considering your performance, your character,
atleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental health, it may also
take administrative action against you at this meeting.

This informational statement is in lieu of any notice that may be required pursuant to
NRS Chapter 241.

Sincerely,

Jesgica J. Kneefel
Human Resources Representative

1790 Hwy. 395 + Minden, Nevada 80423 + 775-782.3546 + 775-782-4915 fax



PROOF OF SERVICE
1, Jessica J. Kneefel, hereby state that | served the foregoing Notice of Meeting of the
Board to consider character, alleged misconduct, competence, or health

2: By personally serving it to Peter Baratti at 1790 Hwy 395, Minden, NV
on March 15, 2024

By depositing it in the United States Mail, postage prepaid,

Certified Mail No.
on this day of ,20
Jessica}] .Kneefel Date

o e
1790 Hwy 395 * Minden, Nevada 89423 * 775-782-3546 - 775-782-4915 fax



MEMORANDUM
DATE: March 15, 2024
TO: MGSD Board of Trustees
FROM: Jessica Kneefel

SUBJECT:  Annual Review for the District Manager

Information for District Manager Annual Review:

Current Salary for District Manager: $132,500
Last Salary Increase: April 2023 (prior salary: $118,500

Current Benefits for District Manager: Health Insurance (all employee, portion family)
PERS
Medicare
Vacation Leave
Sick Leave
Family Sick Leave

Leave Taken during FY 23-24 (thru 3/1224): Vacation Leave: 176.00 hours
Vacation Leave Remaining: 232.57 hours
Regular Sick Leave: 40.00 hours
Doctor Sick Leave: 16.00 hours
Family Sick Leave: 0.00 hours
Sick Leave Remaining: 708.93 hours

Other Benefits:
Workers’ Compensation 457 Plan
Employee Assistant Program 11 Paid Holidays

Shirts, Jackets, Boots

1790 Hwy . 395 « Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 « 775-782-4915 fax



aAES7 WIS Awed shep ¢ wiawdinbg aAioaj0Id [BUCSIEd B A19jes
anea" Aing Ainr pied aaeaT ¥OIS shep O slayoer ‘SHIYS wiojun
sAepljoH pied Z1 aAB97 UOYEORA SABP GI weiBosd 2oue)sissy safodwy

:papiaosd aJe osje noA ‘Ueya ay) ul pauonusll sjyausq pue uoesuadwod ay) 0 uonippe u|

S1'80¢'9YS GZ'L26'LS juswasnay jejol
ST'LZ6'LS FrAY AT 21e0lpa
06 28E'pPe S43d
juawapay
LP'S60' LS 000% 2ouRINSU] |01
SZSLL'LS 000% dwon SISMOM

91 086'EES 0008 . SOUBINSU] - [BJOIGNS
D0'PEZS 000t plyD + adkcidw3 aeay / 9
ol'vleS 000% uauppy) Z+asnods+dw3 UOISIA,
00'ort'L$ 00'0% uMpiIyD Z+Isnods+dw3y jeueq
00°0% 00°0% YN VSH - [EVIPBN
) [ 00'266'LES 00°0% uaupiiy) Z+asnodg+dwl PO Odd [edp2aN
WRWNRY €010 :aaueInsuy|
SumnsY| w0 00°005°ZELS uopesuadiuo) ysed [ejol
uorERUBILOD 0008 'snuog
rele 00°005°Z4$ :lieres
uvonesuadwo) ysen

SuyaUsq uopnguiued gSON  UoRNqIUOD
JAYI0 pUE ‘UsWaLa) ‘saurinsul Yieay Joy Aed 0auipul anoA
ybinosy papiacsd si uogiod Juesyubis e ‘uogesusadwos .
|E30} Jnok o uotued jsabie) sy s) uonesuadwoo ysed JeBeue 1o1sig enL
B)IYM JedA |BDSy Ju Jo Juawelels uonesuadwo) eieE oid o

€10 Peraaload inok ) mojeq pazZuellwns

SZ0Z-+20Z Ad LNJWIALYLS NOLLVYSNIJWOD 3NTVA TV10L

12121810 UoIRHUES
SIIAIOUDIN D UBDUIW

ass Sn
=>)
J



¢ MGSD

MANAE Y GAADHERY TF SawiTafany nie

HNCE 1984

DISTRICT MANAGER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Manager Name: Peter V. Baratti
Rating Period: From: 5/1/2022 To; 4/1/2023
Rating Scale Definitions:
2 - Needs 3 - Meets 4 - Exceeds 5 - Far Exceeds Expectations
1 - Unsatisfactory L
(mprovement Expectations Expectations / Outstanding
Inadequate Performance Capable, Strong performance |Superior performance that
performance that is |demonstrates satisfactory that frequently consistently exceeds job
consistently below  |weakness in performance that |exceeds requirements. Continually
job requirements and |accomplishing consistently meets |expectations. demonstrates willingness to
problematic. Shows |performance and occasionally Demonstrates assume additional
little or no initiative  |expectations and does |exceeds strong knowledge |responsibilities, and makes
or urgency to not consistently meet jexpectations. and ability to significant contributions
improve the standards of the |Errors are generally |perform essential  |beyond normal expecations.
performance. position. minimal and self-  |functions of
corrected. position and seeks
Demonstrates for ways to
effective leadership |improve.

(PHTPS

Page 1 0of 10




. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

| EVALUATION AREA NOTES RATING
(h “1. Relationship with Board of Trustees Avg. 4
Example behavlors that Meet Expectations: Condron:
» Effectively implements policies Condron: 4 Shorten:
and programs approved by the Shorten: 4.0 Smallwood:
Board of Trustees Smallwood: 4.1 Thran:
Thran: 3 Wilson:
Wilson: 4

@ Reporting to the Board of Trustees
is timely, clear, concise, and
thorough

Condron: 5 (Detailed Presentations)
Shorten: 4.5

Smallwood: 4.1

Thran: 4

Wilson: 4

® Accepts direction and instructions
in a positive manner; listens to
and considers ideas from the
Board

Condron: 4
Shorten: 4.0
Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4

® Keeps the Board of Trustees
informed of current plans and

Condron: S {Communicates Effectively)
Shorten: 4.0

activities of MGSD Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4
» Keeps the Board of Trustees Condron: 4
informed of new developments in |y orten: 4.0
legislation, governmental Smallwood: 4.1
practices and regulations Thran: 4
Wilson: 4
® Keeps the Board of Trustees Condron: 4
informed of activities of County  {Shorten: 4.0
development-related activities  |[Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 4
Wilson: 4.5
e Provides the Board of Trustees  |Condron: 4
with clear report of anticipated  |Shorten: 4.5
issues that could come before the |Smallwood: 4.1
Board Thran: 4
Wilson: 4.5

Page 2 of 10




6.

2. Public Relations Avg. 4.1
Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: Condron:
® Projects a positive public image; is |Condron: 4 Shorten:
courteous to the public Shorten: 4.5 Smallwood:
Smallwood: 4.6 Thran:
Thran: 4 Wilson:
Wilson: 4.5
® Maintains relationships with Condron: 4
representatives from other Shorten: 4.5
government agencies Smallwoad: 4.8
Thran; 4
Wilson: 4.5
® Ensures MGSD's website is Condron: 4
updated with current Shorten: 4
administrative and Board-related |Smallwood: 4.0 (Work in Progress)
information Thran: 3
Wilson: 4
e Provides communication to the Condron: 4
public on matters affecting the Shorten: 3.5 {Would like more social media/email
District communication)
Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 4
Wilson: 4

Page 3 of 10




EVALUATION AREA NOTES RATING
3. Effective Leadershlp Avg 4.2
Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: " |Condron:
® Appears to delegate appropriately |Condron: 4 Shorten:
Shorten: 4.0 Smallwood:
Smallwood: 4.6 {Effective to help local water co. Thran:
line break) Wilson:
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4.5
® Provides effective and appropriate [Condron: 4

training for staff

Shorten: 5.0 (Great job cross-training and reducing
additional costs in doing so.)

Smallwood: 4.5 {Continue to cross train staff as
appropriate for productivity. Desk Audits for HR
Training and replacements)

Thran: 3

Wilson: 4

¢ Identifies plant and collection
system needs and problems;
identifies root causes; addresses
problems in ways that lead to

Condron: 5 {Cognitive of all equipments’ remaining
timeline and replacement costs)
Shorten: 5.0 {Very forward thinking)

Smallwood: 5 {Peter acted professionally in breaker

innovative and long-term failure)
solutions Thran: 4
Wilson: 5

e Consistently makes informed
decisions and provides Condron: 4
recommendations based on Shorten: 4.0
available and hard-to-find Smallwood: .9
information; utilizes information |Thran: 4
that is relevant, current, and clear |Wilson: 4

o Follows up on pending issues and |-ondron: &
instructions to ensure resolution |Shorten: 4.0

Smallwood: 4.1 (Continue to identify all accounts.
Number of users, types of acc., walk/verify
addresses, Election Area , correct Votes for
Trustees)

Thran: 3

Wilson: 4.5

Page 4of 10




® Provides accurate reports and
information in a timely manner

Condron: 5 (Concise & Informative)
Shorten: 4.0

Smallwood: 5

Thran: 3

Wilson: 4

4. Fiscal Management Avg. 4
Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: Condron:
> o Utilizes resources, including Condron: 4 Shorten:
expertise of staff/Board members, |Shorten: 4.0 Smallwood:
to prepare a realistic annual Smallwood: 4.1 Thran:
budget Thran: 4 Wilson:
Wilson: 4
e Controls expenditures in
accordance with approved budget [Condron: 4
Shorten: 4.0
Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4
o Works with staff and outside Condron: 4
contractors to ensure audit Shorten: 4.0
findings are addressed and Smallwood: 4.6
resolved in a timely manner Thran: 3
Wilson: 4.5

Page 5 of 10




EVALUATION AREA | NOTES RATING

5. Intergovernmental Affalrs Avg. 38

. Condron:
Exomple behaviors that Meet Expectations: Shorten:
o Maintains effective Condron: 4 Smallwood:
communication with local, Shorten: 4.0 {Consistently reports of meeting with {Thran:
regional, state, and federal local and state agencies} Wilson:
government agencies Smallwood: 4.5 (Long term planning goals, outreach
to other sewer providers, Long term goals for all
providers)
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4
» Contributes to good government |Condron: 4
through regular participationin  {Shorten: 4.5 {MGSD assistance in Gardnerville
local, regional, state agency, and |water main break)
business-related organization Smallwood: 4.5 (Chamber, Douglas County, Pre-app
meetings and relationships meetings, local players, other organizations, long
term solutions}
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4

e Lobbies effectively with legislatars |Condron: 4
and other agencies regarding the |Shorten: 3.0 (Not observed enough to properly

interests and needs of MGSD, rate)
where needed Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4
e Ensures MGSD's interests and Condron: 4

standards are communicated to  |shorten: 4.0
and recognized by local, state, and [smallwood: 4.1
federal government agencies Thran: 3

Wilson: 4

Page 6 of 10



knowtedge and abilities of
leadership position and skills

Shorten: 4.5 (Proactive in seeking training in this
area)

Smallwood: 4.6 {NWEA Cetification, Rate Study)
Thran: 4

Wilson: 4.5

6. Professional Job-Related Competencles Avg. 4.4

Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: Condron:

. ® Maintains current technical Condron: 4 Shorten:
knowledge and ability to Shorten: 5.0 Smallwood:
sufficiently manage tasks and Smallwood: 4.5 (Forward thinking, long term) Thran:
projects Thran: 3 Wilson:

Wilson: 5
® Pursues expanded mastery of Condron: 4

o Maintains State and Federal
mandated centification

Condron: 4
Shorten: 4.0
Smallwood: 5+
Thran: 3
Wilson: 5

*» Combines technical knowledge
with creativity to produce value-
added resuits

Condron: 4

Shorten: 5.0 {Outstanding problem solving this
review period)

Smallwood: S+ (Plant improvements, Staff)
Thran: 4

Wilson: 5

Page 7 of 10




ADDITIONAL COMMENTS BY THE BOARD:

Condron: During the short time serving on the Board of Trustees, | have seen Peter's professionalism and knowledge.
(QI look forward to working with him in the future,

Shorten: Peter, in a short amount of time I've learned that MGSD is in the right hands with your leadership abilities

and subject area expertise. Thank you for your hard work!

Smaltwood: Again, Thank you! We appeciate your dedication to MGSD.

Thran:

Wilson:

il. ACHIEVEMENTS OF NOTE FOR THIS EVALUATION PERIOD:

Condron: Excellent and immediate response to power outage emergency in the facility.

Shorten: €xemplary handiing of the main breaker failure, accounting for staff safety, morale, and continuation of
operations.

Smaltwood: NWEA Certificate Program, Rate Study, Buisness Impact, Breaker failure, Belt press complete, MGSD
Wastewater Master Plan.

Thran:

Wilson: I think Peter s doing a very good job, as he continues to grow in his job as dist. Mgr.

ilN. ITEMS FOR IMPROVEMENT FOR THIS EVALUATION PERIOD:

Condron:

Shorten: Nothin_g to note

Smallwood:

Thran:

Wilson:

Page 8 of 10



V. SUMMARY RATING

2 - Needs 3 - Meets 4 - Exceeds IS - Far Exceeds Expectations
LaLesatisiaciony Improvement Expectations Expectations / Outstanding
4,08

V. FUTURE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Specific goals and objectives to be achieved in the next evaluation period:

Condron: Tour of the facilty for Board of Trustees. Have the mission statement completed.

Shorten: Communication with rate payers about the rate study/increase. Continue to colloborate with stakeholders
regarding solutions to issues created by the sale of Bently properties.

Smallwood: 1. Plant & Facility tour for all

2. Peter! | am still looking for Strategic Plan, Mission Statement, policy, goals & Board workshop.

Quarterly lunch. Celebrate hirthdays, achievements for certificates, continued or not? Manager descision. Just know !
appreciate all your efforts and staff too.

Thran:

Wilson:

Page 9 of 10




Board Action:

e

Next Evaluation Date:

GOVERNING 8B80OARD Concurrence

Yes No
Barbara Smallwood, Chairman

Yes No
Ray Wilson, Vice Chairman

Yes No
Ted Thran, Secretary-Treasurer

Yes No
Sondra Condron, Trustee

Yes No
Chris Shorten, Trustee
DISTRICT MANAGER COMMENTS & SIGNATURE
District Manager Signature Date

Page 10 of 10



EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT
BETWEEN
MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT
AND
PETER V. BARATTI

WHEREAS, Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District (hereinafter “MGSD” or
“DISTRICT”) is a governmental body formed under the laws of the State of Nevada and a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada; and

WHEREAS, Peter V. Baratti (hereinafter “EMPLOYEE”) represents that he maintains

the education, training, experience, ethics, and desire 10 act as the District Manager for MGSD,
and

WHEREAS, based on said representations, it is the desire of MGSD to retain the services
of EMPLOYEE as District Manager.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
parties agree as follows:

1. POSITION TITLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES
EMPLOYEE shall be given the job title of DISTRICT MANAGER and shall perform the
functions and duties of the District Manager of MGSD as set forth by law and policy and
as specified in the Job Description and Duties (see attached Exhibit “A™) for District

Manager, and to perform other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the
MGSD Board of Trustees shall assign from time to time.

2. TERM QF CONTRACT
a. This contract will become effective on July 1, 2023 and will expire on June 30,
2024. This contract will automatically renew for successive one-year periods
unless either party provides notice to the other party that the contract will not be
extended. Said notice shall be given in any form of writing, including email, not
less than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date, but this section shall not

prevent or preclude either party from terminating the contract under any other
provision of the contract.

b. EMPLOYEE will be designated an "Appointed Official” as defined under NRS
281A.160. As such, EMPLOYEE’s position will be cateporized as “Exempt”
under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). EMPLOYEE will serve at the
pleasure and under the supervision of MGSD's Board of Trustees.

3. CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
a. During the term of the Contract, EMPLOYEE agrees to live and maintain his

primary and legal residence, as defined by NRS 10.155, within 30 driving
minutes of the MGSD Plant facility (while obeying all motor vehicle laws).

Employment Coniract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1,2023  June 30,2024
Page 1



b.

€.

Nothing in this Contract shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right
of MGSD to terminate the services of EMPLOYEE at any time for any reason
deemed sufficient or convenient by the MGSD Board of Trustees.

Nothing in this contract shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right
of the EMPLOYEE to resign at any time from his position with MGSD.

MGSD may suspend EMPLOYEE with or without full pay and benefits at any
time during the term of this Contract pending any investigation or other
disciplinary hearing.

During the term of this Contract, EMPLOYEE agrees to file, in a timely manner,
alt reports regarding his personal finances and other information as required by
Nevada law, including but not limited to the annual financial disclosure to the
Nevada Secretary of State’s Office.

4. SALARY and BENEFITS

MGSD agrees to pay EMPLOYEE an annual base salary of One Hundred
Eighteen Thousand and Five Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($118,500.00) for
his services rendered to MGSD. The annual base salary may be adjusted by the
Board of Trustees from time to time in its sole and absolute discretion. The
annual base salary is payable in installments in the same manner as all other
employees of MGSD are paid. April 4, 2023 - MGSD agrees to grant the

District Manager a wage increase of 5% and an additional cost of living increase
of 6.4%

MGSD shall pay contributions to the Nevada Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) on behalf of EMPLOYEE during his employment with MGSD
consistent with the contributions made on behalf of other employees of MGSD
and as permitted by and in strict accordance with Nevada law.

MGSD shall provide EMPLOY EE health, vision, dental, and life insurance
consistent with what other MGSD employees qualify to receive, which the Board
of Trustees may alter, amend, or terminate at any time in its sole discretion
consistent with applicable law and procedure.

MGSD shall provide EMPLOYEE all equipment (i.e., computer, software, cell
phone, etc.) necessary to perform the essential functions of the position,
inciuding a smart phone to conduct MGSD business.

Dwring the term of this Contract, EMPLOY EE shall be eligible to participate in
benefits established by MGSD that are consistent with benefits to all employees
of MGSD (see attached Exhibit “B"), which benefits the Board of Trustees may
adjust, amend, or terminate in its sole discretion from time to time consistent
with Nevada law and procedure.

MGSD shall reimburse EMPLOYEE for any District-related expenses that are
incurred during the course of performance of his duties as District Manager
provided that EMPLOYEE follows all protocols and procedures that MGSD may
establish or require from time to time, for entitlement or reimbursement. These

Employment Contract
Peter V. Baratti
July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

Page 2



expenses may include travel, lodging, food, and any other costs incurred, as set
forth in Section 8.b. below,

5. LEAVE AND HOLIDAYS

EMPLOYEE shall be credited with the vacation leave hours currently earned in
prior employment positions with MGSD. EMPLOYEE shall accrue vacation
leave at the same rate as other MGSD employees qualify to eam.

EMPLOYEE shall be credited with the sick leave hours currently camed in prior
employment positions with MGSD. EMPLOYEE shall accrue sick leave at the
same rate as other MGSD employees qualify 1o eam.

EMPLOY EE shall be entitled to 11 State and Federal holidays per year as
designated in Attached Exhibit “B”. Paid holidays are determined by MGSD and
may change from time to time at the discretion of the Board of Trustees.

EMPLOYEE shall be permitted to utilize administrative leave time as outlined in
Section 4.6 of the MGSD Personnel Policies and Procedures manual.

6. ATTENDANCE AND LEAVE REPORTING

EMPLOYEE shall submit to MGSD’s administrative staff a written record of all
leave taken in eight-hour increments within 7 days of any leave taken.

Consistent with the FLSA and NRS, employees in exempt positions are not
required to be paid for overtime.

i, DISTRICT may make deductions from pay in full day increments when
EMPLOYEE does not qualify 1o use leave, does not have accrued leave,
or chooses not to use paid leave and is absent from work for one or more
full days. Deductions from sick or annual leave balances may be made
in full day increments.

ii. Deductions will also be made to offset amounts EMPLOYEE receives as
jury or witness fees, or for military pay; or for unpaid disciplinary
suspensions of one or more full days imposed in good faith for
workplace conduct rule infractions. MGSD will prorate EMPLOYEE’s
salary based upon the days worked during the initial and terminal pay
period of employment.

iii. EMPLOYEE is generally expected to be available to perform his job
duties during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m, Monday
through Friday, as well as scheduled Board meetings and during
emergency situations. It is expected that in order for EMPLOYEE to
complete his assigned work from time to time, it will be necessary that
he work beyond the normal work days and business hours of MGSD.

7. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
a. MGSD Board of Trustees, with input from EMPLOYEE, shall use best efforts to

establish priorities, goals, and expectations for EMPLOYEE in each year of this
Contract in accordance with Section 9 of this contract. MGSD shall use best
efforts to establish priorities, goals, and expectations for the EMPLOYEE that
coincide with EMPLOYEE’s annual evaluation as provided in Paragraph 7.b.
The priorities, goals, and expectations that are established may be modified,

Employment Contract
Peter V. Baratti
July ([, 2023 - June 30,2024

Page 3



added, or deleted as MGSD Board of Trustees deem appropriate, in consultation
with EMPLOYEE.

Each year prior 10, or as near as possible to, MGSD’s tentative budget hearing in
April of each year, MGSD Board of Trustees will use best efforts to review and
evaluate EMPLOYEE’s performance in accordance with the Open Meeting Law
provisions of Chapter 241 of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). EMPLOYEE's
evaluation shall be based on the priorities, goals, and expectations developed in
Paragraph 7.a., as well as EMPLOYEE's performance of the respensibilities and
duties of the position as outlined in attached Exhibit “A”. The evaluation process
and evaluation rests within the exclusive discretion of the Board of Trustees and
is solely for the convenience of the Board of Trustees and EMPLOYEE.

8. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

<.

MGSD Board of Trustees shall budget and pay for all necessary travel and
subsistence expenses incurred by EMPLOYEE to travel to meetings and
conferences, that will assist EMPLOYEE to continue his professional
development, and to adequately pursue other required functions as the District
Manager, including, but not limited to, any national, regional, state and local
government groups and committees that EMPLOYEE serves as a member, not to
exceed the amount budgeted by the Board each year for such purposes or such
other amount as the Board of Trustees may establish or determine from time to
time in its sole discretion.

MGSD Board of Trustees agrees to budget and pay for the travel and subsistence
expenses of EMPLOYEE for short courses, institutes and seminars that are
necessary for his professional development and for the good of MGSD in such
amount as the Board of Trustees may determine from time to time in its sole
discretion. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees must approve any course or
seminar that is longer than five working days or whose total costs exceed Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00).

EMPLOYEE agrees to maintain in good standing at all times during his
employment a Grade [1l Wastewater Operations Certificate, issued by the State
of Nevada, or as required by the State of Nevada if higher than a Grade 111,

9. STRATEGIC PLANNING

b.

EMPLOYEE agrees that, at least annually, he will schedule and participate in the
following:
i. A goals setting session to review and develop strategic objectives for
MGSD; and
ii. A workshop to develop specific criteria for the priorities and

expectations to serve as the basis for EMPLOYEE's annual evaluation as
set forth in Section 7 of this Contract. This session must be held within
two (2) months of the date of the EMPLOYEE's annual evaluation.

EMPLOYEE agrees that he will schedule and/or coordinate training regarding
Open Meeting Law and Ethics Law for newly elected members of the Board of
Trustees within three (3) months of newly elected officials taking an oath of
office.

Employment Coniract
Peter V. Baratti
July §, 2023 - June 30,2024

Page 4



. EMPLOYEE agrees that he will ensure updates oceur to MGSD's official
website on a monthly basis, or more frequently as needed; that the website
conlains information that is informative to the public regarding MGSD’s
services, fees, policies, and board meeting information; and that the website
meets State and Federal requirements.

10. EMPLOYEE’S ROLE

a. EMPLOYEE shall have the authority on behalf of MGSD to enter into written
and verbal agreements with any customer, client, vendor, or third party in an
amount not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), and for time-sensitive
expenditures not to exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) provided such
expenditures are approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of
Trustees, which authority may be revoked or adjusted from time to time as
determined by the Board of Trustees in its sole discretion.

b. EMPLOYEE shall have the authority to take employment actions including, but
not limited to, hiring and discipline as outlined in the current MGSD Policies and
Procedures Manual as may be amended from time to time by the Board of
Trustees in its sole discretion.

11. DISABILITY OR INABILITY TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS
Without limiting any other right, power, or authority of the Board of Trustees set forth
elsewhere in this Contract or as may be exercised consistent with applicable law, if
EMPLOYEE is permanently disabled or is otherwise unable to perform his duties
because of sickness, accident, injury, mental incapacity or health, as determined by a
qualified health care professional as reasonably determined by the Board of Trustees, for
a period of four (4) successive weeks beyond any accrued sick leave, or for twenty
working days over a thirty working day period, MGSD shall have the option lo terminate
this Contract, subject to Severance Pay requirements in Section 12. EMPLOYEE shall
also be compensated for any accrued sick leave, vacation, and other accrued benefits in
accordance with the then current MGSD policy for what other MGSD employees would
receive under similar circumstances.

12, TERMINATION/SEPARATION/RETIREMENT
a. Atany time during the term of this Contract, MGSD may terminate the Contract
without cause by providing at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice to the
EMPLOYEE. Notice shall be in accordance with Section 17 below. In lieu of
providing thirty (30) days’ notice, MGSD reserves the right to terminate the
Contract without such notice provided that it pays EMPLOYEE thirty (30) days’
pay in addition to any other severance or termination pay provided for herein.

b. Atany time during the term of this Contract, EMPLOYEE may terminate this
contract by providing at least sixty (60) days’ advance written notice to MGSD.
Notice shall be in accordance with Section 17 below.

¢. Unless terminated for cause as described in Paragraph 12.e., or terminated by
EMPLOYEE for any reason whatsoever, if EMPLOYEE is terminated by MGSD
without cause, after MGSD has given notice in accord with Paragraph A above,
and during such time EMPLOYEE is willing and able to perform his duties under

Employment Congract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024
Page §



this Contract, MGSD agrees to pay EMPLOYEE a lump sum cash severance
payment equal to two (2) months’ aggregate salary of EMPLOYEE’s then
current annual base salary (“Severance Pay™), payable within seven (7} days of
termination.

d. Severance Pay shall be in addition to any other payment due to EMPLOYEE for
unused annual leave or other benefits that may be payable to other MGSD
employees with service credit equal to that of EMPLOYEE. EMPLOYEE and
any of his legal dependents will also remain in the group health plan of MGSD
and will continue to receive life insurance benefits, if any, provided to
EMPLOYEE prior to the last day EMPLOY EE provides services to MGSD
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. MGSD emplays fewer than 20; therefore,
EMPLOYEE is not eligible for benefits under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (“COBRA™).

e. For purposes of this Contract, termination for cause is defined as conduct that
constitutes a crime involving fraud, dishonest, or moral turpitude (except for
misdemeanor traffic citations), failure to maintain required licenses or
certifications, any material breach of this Contract, fraud or other dishonest
activity, neglect or failure to discharge duties or to follow directives from the
Board of Trustees, violation of any harassment or discrimination policy of the
Board or any conduct the Board reasonably determines to adversely and
materially reflect upon the business, affairs or reputation of MGSD, or conduct
that constitutes a knowing and willful violation of a law or MGSD policy
governing the conduct of public officers or employees. In such event, MGSD
shall give written notice of its desire to terminate EMPLOYEE for cause and the
effective date of the termination shall be twenty-one (21) days afier notice is
given in accordance with Section 17 below, but EMPLOYEE may be suspended
from Employment during such time. 1f EMPLOYEE is terminated for cause,
EMPLOYEE shall not be entitled to receive Severance Pay.

13. RETURN OF PROPERTY
Upon separation under Section 12 of this Contract, EMPLOYEE agrees to return any and
all property of MGSD. This includes, but is not limited to, equipment, computers,
electronics, cell phones, keys, access information (including, but not limited to, user
names, passwords, and security questions/answers), notes, data, tests, vehicles, reports, or
any property that is requested by MGSD.
i4. COMPLIANCE AND ADHERENCE TO DISTRICT POLICIES
EMPLOYEE agrees that he will act in accordance with this Agreement and with the best
interests of MGSD and to perform all the duties required of the position. In carrying out
the duties and responsibilities of his position, EMPLOYEE agrees to adhere to any and
all policies, procedures, rules, regulations, as administered by MGSD. In addition,

EMPLOYEE agrees to abide by all local, county, State, and Federal laws while employed
by MGSD.

*

15. GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTES

a. This Employment Contract shall be construed and interpreted according to the
laws of the State of Nevada.

Employment Coniract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1, 2023 - June 10, 2024
Page 6



16.

17.

18.

19.

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be resolved by binding arbitration, with
an arbiter selected from a list maintained by the Nevada Supreme Court of senior
District Court judges, with both parties 10 pay their own attomey’s fees and to
share equally in the cost of arbitration. There shall be no presumption for or
against the drafter in interpreting or enforcing this Contract.

¢. MGSD shall select the senior District Court judge if both parties cannot mutually
agree to one.

SEVERABILITY

If any term, section, or provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Contract is
held unenforceable, unconstitutional, or invalid, all remaining sections and provisions
shall be deemed severable and remain legally binding unless a court rules that any such
provision or section is invalid or unenforceable, thus limiting the effect of another

provision or section. In such case, the affected provision or section shall be enforced as
50 limited.

NOTICES
a. Unless otherwise provided for herein, all notices that are to be sent under this
Agreement shall be done in writing and are to be delivered via Certified Mail
(return receipt) and, if applicable, under the terms of NRS 281, to the following
mailing addresses:
i. DISTRICT: Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District
1790 US, Hwy. 395 N.
Minden, NV 89423

ii. EMPLOYEE: Peter V. Baratti
1745 Oakwood Dr.
Minden, NV 89423

b. The aforementioned addresses may be changed with the act of either party
providing written notice.

AMENDMENTS

This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and may only be
modified by a written amendment signed by both parties. This Contract may be executed
in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of
which, when taken together, will constitute one agreement. Any counterpart may be
delivered by any party by transmission of the signature page to the other party and shall
be complete upon the completion of such transmission; however, manually signed copies
of the signature page shall nonetheless be delivered promptly after any such facsimile
delivery. Any changes in EMPLOYEE’s base salary as provided herein shall not reguire
a written amendment 1o this Contract.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Contract, together with any attachments, exhibits, or addendums, or documents
incorporated herein by reference, represents the entire agreement between MGSD and
EMPLOYEE. Therefore, this Contract supersedes any prior contracts, agreements,
promises, conditions, or understandings between MGSD and EMPLOYEE.

Employment Contract

Peter V. Baratti
July 1,2023  June 30, 2024
Page 7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District Board of Trustees has

caused this Employment Contract for Peter V. Baratti to be signed and executed this ~ day of
, 2023,

EMPLOYEE: DISTRICT:

Peter V. Baratti - Barbara S. Smallwood, Chairman i

Board of Trustees
Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District

Ted Thran, Secretary-Treasurer

Emptoyment Contract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1,2023 - June 30, 2024
Page 8



MGSD

R T TREE T T ERETE TPRT P T SETE B

$INCE 1904

DISTRICT MANAGER

JOB DESCRIPTION
CREATED: January 2010
LAST REVISED: April 2019
(reviewed March 2024)

FLSA STATUS: Exempt

POSITION SUMMARY:

Plans, directs, manages, and oversees the activities and operations of the District. Coordinates District
activities with direction provided by the District Board of Trustees. Communicates with the public on
matters affecting the District through public affairs initiatives, press conferences, conducting and
attending public meetings and hearings, and doing public appearances. Provides information to residents,
businesses, and visitors through proactive communication methods that promote the District in a positive
and community-oriented manner. Engages in intergovernmental activities that promote the mutual
interest of the jurisdictions and comply with legal and regulatory requirements. Performs high-level
administrative, technical, and professional work in directing and supervising the administration of the
District. Receives broad policy guidance from the Board of Trustees.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

The position is responsible for the overall management and implementation of the administration,
operation, resources, and maintenance functions for the District, and acts as the District's representative
with respect to all services provided, consistent with the administrative and policy direction of the Board
of Trustees, with the authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and interpret the District's
policies and decisions. The District Manager is appointed by and reports to the District Board of
Trustees, and is unclassified and “at-will”, serving at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

Duties include and are not limited to the following:

o Develops, evaluates, and implements administrative policies and procedures to meet Board goals
and objectives; assists the Board in the development of overall goals of the District; follows

MGSD

&

District Manager
Job Description (Rev. April 2019)
Page | of 6

1780 Hwy 395 - Minden. Nevada 89423 - 7757823546 - 775-782-4915 fax



suggested and recommended alternatives from the Board of Trustees; provides leadership and
direction in the development of short- and long-range plans for achieving overall goals.

Selects, directs, develops, evaluates, and manages personnel and personnel policies; determines
staffing needs; instructs and trains staff and provides training programs to enhance the
capabilities of staff; conducts performance evaluations; listens, responds to, and resolves
employee, problems, concerns, complaints, and grievances: administers discipline for inadequate
performance and/or improper behavior.

Supervises and manages the operation of all wastewater treatment facilities and processes,
including collection and treatment systems, effluent disposal systems, biosolids disposal, and
grease digestion program.

Represents the District as Public Information Officer (P1O) and serves as the spokesperson and
primary resource for District information; represents the District in appearances with various
federal, state, county, and local groups and through various media; makes presentations to
business, community, and other groups to present information and answer questions; represents
the District with other government agencies and with the public.

Oversees development of reports, financial statements, and budget forecasts for the amount of
funds needed for operations, materials, supplies, equipment, and staffing; monitors and approves
expenditures; recommends remedial action to adjust budgetary expenditures when expenditures
are over budget estimates or when unforeseen circumstances or budgetary cuts are imposed.
Develops, maintain, and monitors District website and social media strategy and content.
Analyzes proposals regarding policies, programs, and services, and develops recommendations to
the Board of Trustees; analyzes information periaining to District services and operations,
including policies, programs, methods, budgets, staffing, organization, and capital needs; writes
reports and comrespondence on behalf of the District to various government agencies and
members of the community.

Oversees the preparation of Board of Trustees meeting agendas; attends Board meetings; makes
oral and written presentations to the Board and to other public and private groups; provides
information to news media and the public regarding District operations.

Analyzes proposed legislation and administrative regulations for their impact on District
operations; reviews and makes recommendations to the Board of Trustees regarding legislative
activities; participates in the lobbying process by presenting oral and written testimony to
appropriate bodies.

Ensures the timely completion of scheduled projects according to applicable codes and
specifications; determines and implements modifications in specifications where appropriate;
researches and develops specifications for material and equipment used in facility operations.
Confers with and advises architects, builders, attomeys, contractors, engineers, and the general
public regarding District development and improvement policies and standards, oversees the
processing of development, construction, and annexation petitions and applications; assists
customers with enquiries regarding the District’s review and permitting process; assesses permit
and MGSD fees; represents the District’s interest in community development and public works
projects to other government agencies through various means, including meeting attendance
and/or written correspondence.

MGED

‘W
District Manager

Job Description (Rev. April 2019)
Page 2 of 6

1780 Hwy 395 * Minden, Nevada 89423 - 775-782-3546 - 775-782-4915 fax



¢ Determines the need for repair and maintenance of existing treatment and collection facilities and
equipment; determines when purchase of new equipment or construction of new facilities is
indicated; consults with the District Engineer and resources as required.

s Evaluates laboratory results and processes control tests to assure adequate treatment process and
compliance with regulatory standards.

* Maintains data on the wastewater treatment, effluent, biosolids disposal, and grease digestion
programs; prepares required reports and summary sheets that are sent 1o regulatory agencies
regarding the operation of the facilities.

e Responsible for developing and implementing safety standards for the operation of District
equipment and facilities; ensures all District staff arc traincd and adhere to safety standards.

s [nsures that the facilities are in compliance with established guidelines and regulations.

Represents the District with dignity, integrity, and cooperatively in all relationships with staff and
the public.

e Performs related duties as required by the Board of Trustees.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT:

Knowledge of:
= Principles and practices of organizational leadership, management, and supervision;

e Principles of human resource development and utilization, including federal and state
employment regulations and practices;

Modern methods of procurement, contract negotiation, and administration;

Principles of public budget preparation and administration;

Modern methods of secondary wastewater treatment, chlorine formulas and testing techniques;
Pumping equipment and proper pump operation;

Corrective maintenance on facility equipment;

Mechanical, biolegical, chemical, and physical characteristics of wastewater treatment and
disposal systems;

Laboratary techniques and procedures as related to sewage treatment analysis;

Occupational hazards and safety precautions of the work;

Mathematical calculations at a fevel necessary to perform the essential functions;

PC computers and Microsoft software programs, including a functional knowledge of Word and
Excel; and

o Laws and regulations which pertain to District operations, services, and programs.

Skill to:

¢ Plan, organize, and manage business operations;
s Negotiate appropriate solutions and contracts; and
L ]

Manage administrative processes including budgeting, internal controls, policy development,
planning, and problem solving.

Ability to:

MCGED

~o&

District Manager
Job Description (Rev April 2019)
Page 3 of 6

1790 Hwy. 395 - Minden. Nevada 89423_ 775782 3546 * 775-782-4915 fax



Develop policies and goals consistent with directives from the Board of Trustees;

Effectively administer projects and operations consistent with District policies and goals;

Plan, direct, and evaluate the work of staff;

Develop, motivate, and supervise operations and administrative stafT;

Work effectively under the pressure of deadlines, conflicting demands, and emergencies;
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with District staff, elective bodies, and
members of the general public;

e Collect, interpret, and evaluate narrative and statistical data pertaining to policy, fiscal, and
operational matters;

s Monitor and control wastewater treatment plant functions through the use of SCADA and
complex computer control systems;
e Gain cooperation through discussion and communication;

Answer all types of emergency calls during hours not normally worked that deal with operational
problems to assure continual wastewater facilities operations;

s  Analyze, read, record, and interpret policies, regulations, meters, charts, graphs, drawings, plans,
laboratory reports, operation and maintenance manuals;

¢ Recommend alternatives to Board of Trustees and staff;
Project the consequences of proposed actions;

e Implement administrative policies and work programs consistent with regulations and with
District policies and goals;

o [nterpret and apply federal and state policies, procedures, laws, and regulations to assure
compliance with requirements and limit liability for the District;

e Present findings, recommendations, and policies 10 individuals and groups in an understandable
and persuasive manner,

s Communicate effectively orally and in writing on matters related to District policy, funding, and

operations;

Prepare and administer budgels;

Prepare forms and reports as required by federal and state requirements;

Conduct research and prepare clear and concise reports;

Deal courteously and tactfully with the public;

Drive a vehicle;

Work in confined spaces wearing a breathing apparatus;

Speak, read, and write the English language at a level necessary to perform essential functions;
and

e Promote a positive image of the District.

REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSES:
e Grade il (Non-Restricted) State of Nevada, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Certification
e Certification of completion of OSHA 30-hour training and safety course

MGCSD

~&

District Manager
Job Description (Rev. April 2019)
Page 4 of 6

1790 Hwy 395 - Minden, Nevada 89423 - 775.782-3546 - 775-782-4915 fax




EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING:
Any combination of training, education, and experience that would provide the required knowledge,
skills, and abilities. A typical way to gain the required knowledge, skills, and abilities is:
¢ High School diploma or equivalency; and

¢ Four years of increasingly-responsible experience in the field of wastewater operations, sewage
treatment plant works, and sewage collection.

MENTAL/INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSCIAL REQUIRFMENTS:

The physical and mental/intellectual requirements described here are representative and of those that must
be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of the job.

¢ Sufficient mobility to work in a typical field setting and use related equipment necessary for the
job or tasks as necessary.

Ability to frequently climb stairs and ladders.
Senses of sight, hearing, smell, taste and touch.

e  Ability to effectively interpret reports, financial data, construction, architectural, and engineering
plans, and maps.

e Ability to interact professionally, communicate effectively, and exchange information accurately
with all internal and external customers.

¢ Strength and stamina to drive long distances;

Must have manual dexterity and cognitive ability to operate a personat computer using word
processing, spreadsheet, and database programs.

The ability to communicate via telephone.
e  Ability to appropriately handle stress and interact with others, including coworkers, clients, and

customers.

¢ Sufficient hand and body coordination to perform maintenance tasks and to check gauges and
valves,

o Frequently lifting and carrying 1-25 pounds from floor to waist level and infrequently lifting up
to 50 pounds.

s Regular and consistent punctuality and attendance.

In compliance with applicable disability laws, reasonable accommeodations may be provided for qualified
individuals with a disability who require and request such accommodations. Applicants and incumbents
are encourages 1o discuss potential accommodations with the Board of Trustees,

WORKING CONDITIONS:

Work is performed under the following conditions:

e Position functions at a wastewater treatment facility and may occasionally take place at
construction sites, as well as in confined spaces.

MCSD»

~&

District Manager
Job Description {Rev. April 2019)
Page S of 6

1790 Hwy. 395 - Minden, Nevada 89423 * 775-782-3546 775—782-4915&5)(



¢  Working above and below ground; heights, in excess of 20 feet, depths below ground in excess of
20 feet.

¢ Exposure to extreme weather conditions including freezing temperatures, snow, ice.

» Exposure to dust, odors, methane pas, chemicals which may include but not limited to acids,
polymers, chlorine, sodium hydroxide, lime and fumes.

» Exposure to waste, hazardous and infectious waste, noise electrical hazards, moving objects,
vehicles, sharp objects, pinch points, gases, dust, and slippery surfaces.

¢ Safety equipment utilized may include hearing and eye protection, safety shoes, gloves, masks,
respirators, and a safety vest.

Indoors in an office type environment where work is performed at a desk.
Periodic contact with angry and upset individuals

Frequent work interruptions of planned work activities by telephone calls, office visitors, and
response to unplanned events,

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

» Must file financial disclosure form on annual basis with Nevada Secretary of State.
¢ Moust be bondable.

EMPLOYEE'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

1 have read and understand this explanation and job description.

Signature Date

Print Name

MGSD

&

Distnct Manager
tob Description (Rev. Apnl 2019)
Page 6 of 6

1790 Hwy. 395 - Minden. Nevada 89423 - 775-782-3546 - 775-782-4915 fax



MGSD

MISDEY AR SN TAN DN DESTECE

HNCE 1964

POSITION TITLE:
SUPERVISED BY:

District Manager
Board of Trustees

LIST OF DUTIES

CREATED: April 2019
REVISED: October 2020

May 2022
March 2024
SUPERVISOR POSITION? Yes

List of Key Responsibilities

Supervise and manage operations of District
and staff
Manage office/administration operations and
staff
Report to Board of Trustees and atiend
Board Meetings
Submit required reports to various
regulatory agencies

o DMR’s (Discharge Monitoring

Reports) - quarterly

o Bio-Solids Reports - annually

o Haz-Mat Reports — annually
Effluent Agreements

o Calculate billing amounts — annually
GRGID Agreements

< Prepare fixed billings - quarterly

o Prepare variable billings  semi-

annually
Budgeting
:  Prepare/submit/manage annual
budget

= Coordinate with accountant

o Review/sign payroll
o Review/approve purchase orders
o Sign Checks - up to $10,00¢ {and
all utilities in any amount)
Plan Review
Determine capacity requirements and fees
o lIssue up to 10 edu’s of capacity
without Board approval
Attend pre-application meetings with
County personnel
Attend pre-construction meetings/special
meetings in the field
Employee evaluations
Enforce adherence to MGSD Code/Policies
Coordinate with engineers
< Plant projects
2 Rehabilitation/Repairs
Coordinate with Legal Counsel
Website design, management, and updates
District public relations and customer
service

~&

District Manager
L1st of Duties {March 2024)
Page 1o0f3

1700 Hwy 395 - Minden, Nevada 89423 - 775 782.3546 - 775-782-4915 fax



List of General Responsibilities:
[ ]

Plans, directs, manages, and oversees the activities and operations of the District,

Coordinates District activities with direction provided by the District Board of Trustees.
Communicates with the public on matters affecting the District through public affairs initiatives, press
conferences, conducting and attending public meetings and hearings, and doing public appearances.
Provides information to residents, businesses, and visitors through proactive communication methods
that promote the District in a positive and community-oriented manner.

Engages in intergovermmental activities that promote the mutual interest of the jurisdictions and
comply with legal and regulatory requirements.

Performs high-level administrative, technical, and professional work in directing and supervising the

administration of the District.

Receives broad policy guidance from the Board of Trustees.

List of Essential Functions:

*

Develops, evaluates, and implements
administrative policies and procedures to
meet Board goals and objectives; assists the
Board in the development of overall goals of
the District; provides leadership and
direction in the development of short- and
long-range plans for achieving overall goals.

Selects, directs, develops, evaluates, and
manages personnel and personnel policies;
determines staffing needs; instructs and
trains staff and provides training programs
to enhance the capabilities of staff;, conducts
performance evaluations; listens, responds
to, and resolves employee, problems,
concerns, complaints, and grievances;
administers discipline for inadequate
performance and/or improper behavior.

Supervises and manages the operation of all
wastewater treatment facilities and
processes, including collection and
treatment systems, effluent disposal systems,
biosolids disposal, and prease digestion
program,

Represents the District as Public
Information Officer (PIO) and serves as the

spokesperson and primary resource for
District information; represents the District
in appearances with various federal, state,
county, and local groups and through
various media; makes preseniations o
business, community, and other groups to
present information and answer questions;
represents the District with other
government agencies and with the public.

Oversees development of reports, financial
statements, and budget forecasts for the
amount of funds needed for operations,
materials, supplies, equipment, and staffing;
monitors and approves expenditures;
recommends remedial action to adjust
budgetary expenditures when expenditures
are over budget estimates or when
unforeseen circumstances or budgetary cuts
are imposed.

Develops, maintain, and monitors District
website and social media strategy and
content.

Analyzes proposals regarding policies,
programs, and services, and develops
recommendations to the Board of Trustees;

e
~5

District Manager
List of Duties {March 2024)
Page 2 of 3

1790 Hwy 395 - Minden. Nevada 89423 - 775-782-3546 * 775-782-4915 fax



analyzes information pertaining to District
services and operations, including policies,
programs, methods, budgets, staffing,
organization, and capital needs; writes
reports and correspondence on behalf of the
District to various government agencies and
members of the community.

Oversees the preparation of Board of
Trustees meeting agendas; attends Board
meetings; makes oral and written
presentations to the Board and to other
public and private groups; provides
information to news media and the public
regarding District operations.

Analyzes proposed legislation and
administrative regulations for their impact
on District operations; reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board of Trustees
regarding legislative activities; participates
in the lobbying process by presenting oral
and written testimony to appropriate bodies.

Ensures the timely completion of scheduled
projects according to applicable codes and
specifications; determines and implements
modifications in specifications where
appropriate; researches and develops
specifications for material and equipment
used in facility operations.

Confers with and advises architects,
builders, attorneys, contractors, engineers,
and the general public regarding District
development and improvement policies and
standards; oversees the processing of
development, construction, and annexation
petitions and applications; assists customers
with enquiries regarding the District’s
review and permitting process; assesses
permit and impact fees; represents the
District’s interest in community
development and public works projects to

1790 Hwy 395 - Minden, Nevada 89_423 775-782-3546 * 775-782-4915 fax

other government agencies through various
means, including meeting attendance and/or
written correspondence.

Determines the need for repair and
maintenance of existing treatment and
collection facilities and equipment;
determines when purchase of new
equipment or construction of new facilities
is indicated; consults with the District
Engineer and resources as required.

Evaluates laboratory results and processes
control tests to assure adequate treatment
process and compliance with regulatory
standards.

Maintains data on the wastewater treatment,
effluent, biosolids disposal, and grease
digestion programs; prepares required
reports and summary sheets that are sent to
regulatory agencies regarding the operation
of the facilities.

Responsible for developing and
implementing safety standards for the
operation of District equipment and
facilities; ensures all District staff are trained
and adhere to safety standards.

Insures that the facilities are in compliance
with established guidelines and regulations.

Represents the District with dignity,
integrity, and cooperatively in all
relationships with staff and the public.

Performs related duties as required by the
Board of Trustees.

MCS D

~~

District Manager
List of Duties (March 2024)
Page 3 of 3



Agenda Item 8

Pine View Estates Contract of Service

Items in this Section Include:

v’ Second Amendment to the Contract for Sewer Service between Pine View
HOA and MGSD



MEMORANDUM
DATE: March 28, 2024
TO: MGSD Board of Trustees
FROM: April Burchett

SUBJECT: Pine View Estates Project Status

Just for a refresher and for the benefit of our upcoming Trustees, below is a summary of the
history and status of the Pine View Estates HOA project:

First, a Very Brief History

L

On September 3, 2013 the Pine View Estates HOA made a presentation before MGSD’s
Board regarding sewer problems at their subdivision south of Gardnerville.

o Each parcel in the subdivision has a septic system that releases sewage to one of
six treatment units (also known as a package plant). In 2007, the EPA fined the
developer for sewage system problems and stated the package plant did not meet
regulatory compliance.

o The HOA Board requested that MGSD consider allowing Pine View to connect to
MGSD’s sewer system, and the Board concurred.

* Trustees were Ray Wilson, Bob Allgeier, Barbara Smallwood, Mike

Henningsen, and Mark Dudley

Resource Concepts, Inc. was retained by the HOA to complete a feasibility study for
alternatives to the Pine View sewer issue. By 2015 it was determined that the best
alternative was for the MGSD service main in Hwy 395 be extended south to Pine View.
Pine View would pay the cost for the sewer main extension. While many details would
be worked out later, it was verbally agreed that the HOA would maintain the sewer main
to a point where the line would feed into MGSD’s line by gravity at which point MGSD
would maintain the sewer main.
In September 2017 the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) requested
that MGSD apply for a Principal Forgiveness Loan to assist Pine View HOA in the
design costs for the sewer main extension. Pine View had been approved for funding by
the USDA, but that funding could only be used for construction and connection costs.
The principal forgiveness loan would be awarded through the State Revolving Loan Fund
(SLRF) to MGSD to reimburse Pine View for costs related to the construction design.
The Board agreed to make an application to NDEP for a principal forgiveness loan.

1790 Hwy. 395 « Minden, Nevada 89423 - 775-782-3546 - 775-782-4915 fax



Pine View Estates History/Status
March 28, 2024
Page 2

o Trustees were Ray Wilson, Bob Allgeier, Barbara Smallwood, Mark Dudley, and
Mike King.
s Over time, the USDA awarded funds to Pine View for construction, the residents
obtained full ownership of the property.
o In order for Pine View to retain their funding, MGSD locked in the capacity and
connection fee to $4,075 per residence.
¢ On November 28, 2022, a contract of service agreement between MGSD and Pine View

Estates was recorded, with amendment language requested by NDEP recorded in May
2023.

Current Status

o MGSD was awarded a principal forgiveness loan for $2.18 million.

o A principal forgiveness loan is more of a grant than a loan and may be awarded
by the State Revolving Loan Fund when certain conditions are met. The principal
of the loan will be forgiven, so MGSD will not have to pay any principal or
interest.

e The design of the sewer main extension has been completed, but problems were
encountered obtaining an easement through Washoe Tribe. A sewer re-design has been
prepared to route the sewer main location through the Corley Ranch instead of the Tribal

property. This is the last piece of the puzzle that Pine View HOA needs to put the project
out to bid.

The item on the April 2" agenda is to appreve amended language to the Contract of
Service Agreement with respect to the connection at Pinenut Court instead of on Tribal
property.

MLsSD

N

1790 Hwy. 395 - Minden, Nevada 89423 - 775-782-3546 - 775-782-4915 fax



AEril Burchett

From: Frank Flaherty <FFlaherty@dyerlawrence.com>

Sent; Wednesday, March 6, 2024 5:26 PM

To: 'Peterson, William'; Cornelius, Willow

Cc: Denise Beronio; Peter Baratti; April Burchett; Keith Shaffer
Subject: Requested Contract Amendment - MGSD-Pine View Estates HOA
Attachments: 240306HOA-MGSD K.2nd.amendment.draft.docx

Helio Bill,

Following up on my email below, attached is a proposed Second Amendment to the Contract for Sewer Service between
Pine View HOA and MGSD. It is pretty short, and the only change reflects that that the Point of Connection will no longer
be on Tribal property but will instead be north of that property at or near an existing MGSD manhole in the Pinenut
Court right-of-way. The HOA is requesting that MGSD Board approve the amendment.

Please let me know if this email suffices or if you need something more formal.
Thanks,
Frank

Francis C. Flaherty, Esq.

Dyer Lawrence, LLP

2805 Mountain Street

Carson City, Nevada 89703-1539
T: (775) 885-1896

F: (775) 885-8728

This e-mail may contain legally privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient(s), or the
employee or agent responsible for delivery of this message to the intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in
error, please immediately notify the sender and delete this message from your computer.

From: Frank Flaherty

Sent: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 11:10 AM

To: 'Peterson, William' <wpeterson@swlaw.com>

Cc: Clarke, Natalie <nclarke@swlaw.com>; Forrest, Jeanne <jforrest@swlaw.com>

Subject: FW: Pine View Estates HOA and Washoe Tribe - FW: Message from "RNP5838790BEOBE"

Hello Bill, hope this email finds you well,

Attached is a copy of a letter | just sent off to counsel for the Washoe Tribe terminating negotiations between the Tribe
and the HOA. The HOA determined it no longer had time to negotiate with the Tribe without risking loss of USDA
funding. The HOA's engineer took a second look at the Corley Ranch property just east of the Tribal parcel and
determined that it was feasible after all. The HOA and Corley Ranches signed an easement agreement last week and the
engineers are undertaking a survey and legal description for the easement.



1 believe that this will only require one amendment to the contract between the HOA and MGSD; specifically, the third
WHEREAS paragraph that spans pages 1 and 2. | have asked the HOA's engineer for new language to describe the "Point
of Connection." The HOA will be formally presenting a request to MGSD to amend the Contract by way of a letter to the
District with a copy to you.

Please feel free to call me if you have any questions or would like to discuss.
Thanks,
Frank

Francis C. Flaherty, Esq.

Dyer Lawrence, LLP

2805 Mountain Street

Carson City, Nevada 89703-1539
T: (775) 885-1896

F: {775) 885-8728

This e-mail may contain legally privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient(s), or the
employee or agent responsible for delivery of this message to the intended recipient(s}, you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in
error, please immediately notify the sender and delete this message from your computer.

From: Frank Flaherty

Sent: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 11:01 AM

To: 'Timothy C. Seward' <TSeward@hobbsstraus.com>

Cc: 'Denise Beronio' <gunpowder.308@gmail.com>; Richard J. Frye <RFrye@hobbsstraus.com>
Subject: Pine View Estates HOA and Washoe Tribe - FW: Message from "RNP5838790BEOBE"

Dear Mr. Seward,

Please see attached letter re: negotiations between Pine View Estates HOA and Washoe Tribe re: wastewater pipeline
right-of-way.

Thank you for your time and attention.
Frank

Francis C. Flaherty, Esq.

Dyer Lawrence, LLP

2805 Mountain Street

Carson City, Nevada 89703-1539
T: {775) 885-1896

F: (775) 885-8728

This e-mail may contain legally privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient(s), or the
employee or agent responsible for delivery of this message to the intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in
error, please immediately notify the sender and delete this message from your computer.



From: scanner@dyerlawrence.com <scanner@dyerlawrence.com>

Sent: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 10:45 AM

To: Kelly Gilbert <kgilbert@dyerlawrence.com>; Frank Flaherty <FFlaherty@dyerlawrence.com>
Subject: Message from "RNP5838790BEQSE"

This E-mail was sent from "RNP5838790BEOBE" (MP C6004ex).

Scan Date: 03.05.2024 10:45:22 (-0800)
Queries to: scanner@dyerlawrence.com



When Recorded Please
Return to:

Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District
1790 US Hwy. 395 N.
Minden, Nevada 89423

SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT FOR PROVIDING SEWER SERVICE

This Amendment is made on this  day of , 2024 by and between
the PINE VIEW ESTATES HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION, a Nevada Corporation organized
and existing under NRS 81.010 — 81.160, (hereinafter referred to as “OWNER” or “HOA”™), and
the MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT, a governmental body organized
under the laws of the State of Nevada (hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT”) and amends the

Contract for Providing Sewer Service made by the HOA and the District on August 19, 2022, as
recorded by the District in the Office of the Recorder, Douglas County, Nevada on November 28,
2022 as Document No. 2022-991909 (the “Contract™).

The HOA and the DISTRICT hereby replace the third “WHEREAS” paragraph of the

Contract with the following:

WHEREAS, the OWNER has been awarded loan and grant (funding) from
the U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural Development (“USDA™) to construct a
wastewater main (“OWNER’s Main” or “Improvements’) from Pine View Estates
to connect to the DISTRICT’s wastewater treatment system at a location to be
determined near the DISTRICT’s existing twelve-inch main, at or near an existing
DISTRICT manhole located in Pinenut Court, which is approximately SEVEN
HUNDRED FIFTY (750} feet south of the intersection of U).S. Highway 395 and
Muller Parkway, and then approximately THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE
(375) feet east of U.S. Highway 395 (the point of connection is within the Pinenut
Court right-of-way, which is adjacent to the northern boundary of APN 1220-11-
(02-009) (*Point of Connection™),

[Remainer of page intentionally left blank.)



All other provisions of the Contract, as amended by the First Amendment thereto, dated
April 13, 2023, as recorded by the DISTRICT in the Office of the Recorder, Douglas County,
Nevada on May 31, 2023, as Document No. 2023-996933, remain unchanged and are in full force
and effect.

EXECUTED at Minden, Nevada, on the date first above written.

DISTRICT OWNER
By: By:
Barbara Smallwood Denise Beronio
Chair, Board of Trustees President, Pine View Estates Home
Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District Owners Association
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.

COUNTY OF DOUGLAS )

This instrument was acknowledged before me, a Notary Public, on the day of
, 2024, by Denise Beronio.

By: e
Notary Public
STATE OF NEVADA )
) s8.
COUNTY OF DOUGLAS )
This instrument was acknowledged before me, a Notary Public, on the day of
, 2024, by Barbara Smallwood.
By:
Notary Public



Agenda Item 12

Administrative Report by Staff

Items in this Section Include:

v’ Administrative Staff Report for March, 2024




A \ Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District

MGSD Administrative Staff Report

W i

V April 2, 2024

Report by: April Burchett, Jessica Kneefel, and Haley Mosegard

STAFF ITEMS: INTEREST! TIDBITS:
e The new website is now live! If there is anything that e Woeare working on changing the logos on the vchicles to
we missed, please let us know so we can update it. the current logo.

e Two people (Danicl Griffith and Michele Wagner) signed
up for the two vacancics; stafl have been working with them
for onboarding.

Congratulations Barbara on hccoming a board member of
the Town of Gardnerville Advisory Board! And
congratulations Ray on your retirement!

OFFICIAL ITEMS: UPCOMING ITEMS:

e The standby pay for the operators will be increased e Asarcminder, the FY 24-25 Financial Budget meeting is on
to the federal minimum wage in accordance with April 12,
industry trends. April will give more detail at the
mccting.

HR TRENDING ISSUES: THINGS KEEPING US BUSY RIGHT NOW:

o Blocking on Social Media: The Supreme Court e The new quarter is starting, and we expect our number of
clarified that public officials could block someonc on calls to increase when the bills get sent out.

their PERSONAL social media accounts or delete
their comments as long as the public official is NOT
acting on behalf of their entity.



